CREATING

VALUE

» through Innovatlon
Rl & ¥ - & E

"‘5‘53?

2014

Annual Report £

Neway Group Holdings Limited
IG th £ S [ 3% B A R 4 B
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability 74 & S 2w Az 2 B R A7)

Stock Code A% 17 X 5%: 00055



Annual Report 3 2014

Corporate Information

NEIER

Company Awards
EIRIE

Chairman’s Statement

TRBE

Management Discussion and Analysis
IR E S M AT

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EENRRTRABZBE

Directors’ Report
BEEEWME

Independent Auditor’s Report

18 A% BAD R

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

REBRmLEMEERAREK

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE B RRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GRS T

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBRESREWME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BTSRRI EE

Principal Properties

ITEYE

Financial Summary

MBHE

Annual Report 2014 F #§



Clarendon House

Leung & Lau
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman) Ehurﬁth St;e&t y
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Baml Zn
! i ; ermuda
(Chief Executive Officer) Deloitie Touche Tohmatss

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwi hoi, W. . o
- C wing Chol, Warren Codan Services Limited

Mr. WONG Sun Fat 1C‘P|1L¢ng Zak: Pr|nt|gg Group Building Clarendon House
Ip Cheong Street 2 Church Street
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling Hamilton HM 11 Bermuda
New Territories
Mr. TSE Tin Tai Hong Kong

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan . . .
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Limited | evel 22, Hopewell Centre

Hang Seng Bank Limited 183 Queen’s Road East
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong The Hongkong and Shanghai Wanchai
(Alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan) Banking Corporation Limited Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited Hito: he
Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan ttp://www.newaygroup.com.

+ names are in alphabetical order

00055
Clarendon House RPEED I EZEAIT
g gﬁglgg(f Church Street
Bermuda ~ s =R
REHEL Codan Services Limited
BeR A 4 o A Clarendon House
EHRLAE =% 2 Church Street
bl Hamilton HM 11 Bermuda
R
. R )
B ?_; | /4= =] N =
P £4565115 S EHEBHERAT
2 ] 22 46 A R HIR B AKE %/&
ERKNBER1835E
A F Ly
552 0 BRI AR A A RIT L2221
(REBELELEE) BARITERAA
BB LBESRITERAF http://www.newaygroup.com.hk
BITIRIT (HE)BR AT
ok & Mt/ E .
+ BREUEXFEEIXRFHES 00055

Annual Report 2014 F



2013/14
Bronze Award

18 & 32 Bk = /5 I (R K &

Hang Seng Pan Pear River Delta Environrmental Awards

During the Period, we have also obtained two awards organized by FRERA - B AP IR o B T (R 4B 48 7R 35 W TR 4%
respective organizations in the PRC, namely:— B oRlA: —
— Promotion of harmonious labour relationship —FIRE S B R R (2

— Improvement in quality -
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | would like to present to the
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the nine months ended 31 December 2014 (the
"Period”).

The Group recorded a loss during the Period, mainly due to the
loss recognized for the manufacturing and sales business. The
loss recorded in the manufacturing and sales business was largely
attributable to: (i) the reduction of sales orders placed by several
major overseas customers, (i) the increase in minimum wages set by
the government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"); and
(iii) the one-off impairment loss recognized for the non-current assets
of the segment.

During the Period, the Group has further diversified into the
mini storage business by renovating several storeys within a self-
owned industrial building in Fanling to create value for the Group.
Furthermore, a new business, namely the slot machine business,
was developed during the Period, which is still in the early stage of
development.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to allocate more resources
to expand the money lending business and the mini storage business
because a higher profit margin is expected to be achieved by both
of them. Besides, the Group will actively search for potential spaces
in Hong Kong for renovating into mini storage or serviced offices for
rental purpose. On the other hand, the development of slot machine
business is progressed according to the scheduled plan, and will be
launched to the market once it is ready. Furthermore, the Group will
seek for more equity investment opportunities with a higher return on
investment.

For manufacturing and sales business, in order to cope with the
inflationary environment in the PRC, cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement will be the major initiatives of the Group in the coming
year. Furthermore, the Group will step up its effort in strengthening
the relationship with existing customers and building up business
networks with new customers. For entertainment business, the
Group will invest more in movie, teleplay and interactive online
entertainment projects in the following year.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to RABEA - 2BRE - 1REE EBBHER

express my appreciation to all shareholders, investors, business BT -—HERNIBAEERANEEIBHAR
partners and staff for their continuous support and dedication % AAREL#E RRESERRSFHA
throughout the Period. ROHE -

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie TE

Chairman BEEB

Hong Kong BB

27 March 2015 —T-RF=A=-++H
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The financial year-end date of the Company and its Hong Kong
subsidiaries has been changed to 31 December, effective from 2014.
The change allows all companies under the Group, both in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), to have the same
financial year-end date, which helps to facilitate the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements. This change has led to the
shortening of the current reporting period to nine months (1 April
2014 to 31 December 2014) and the comparative figures covering
the twelve months from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 ("Year
2013/2014") may not be directly comparable with the performance
figures of the current period.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014 (the “Period”), the
Group has continued its effort in diversifying its business portfolios.
The new mini storage business was commenced during the Period to
better utilize the idle spaces in a self-owned industrial building located
in Fanling (the “Fanling Building”), and to create value for the Group.
In addition, the Group has actively developed the money lending
business in Hong Kong by cooperating with other experienced money
lending companies in the city. Furthermore, the Group is developing
a new business, the slot machine business, for which talents with
distinctive technical skill sets were employed during the Period. The
slot machine business, in its early stage of development, may not be
able to contribute revenue to the Group in the coming year. Further
details about the slot machine business are disclosed in the “OTHER
BUSINESS” section in this report. Going forward, the diversification in
business mix will broaden the revenue streams of the Group.

During the Period, the Manufacturing and Sales business has reported
a significant loss, mainly due to (i) the reduction in sales orders placed
by existing customers, leading to the decline in revenue; and (ii)
the impairment loss on non-current assets, which mainly comprise
of plant and equipment of the Manufacturing and Sales business.
With respect to the trading business of the Group, the segment has
continued to record double-digit revenue growth during the Period,
and it is playing an increasingly significant role in the Group.

Annual Report 2014 F

RAREREESMNBRAT ST RER
FHEAERAT-_A=1+—H8 #ER
—E-MERERN BEEAEEET
EEBRPEARLNE ([FE])ERQ
ﬂZWﬁEV%*EW“*ﬁ“@ﬂK
NARBRE I BEHRE - KFEIR - KB
BHEEEZENEA (ZE—NFHA
—AE_T—NF+_A=+— E)ﬁ
MER T__EV_EUE] = = @
F=H=+—A([—F—=,/—F—
MRERE])+= MHMW%%\‘&T
e RV EREN REIEERIL R

HE-_ZT-—NMFE+_A=+—HI1ENE
A(THAD  AEBEERINEAZE
G  BARRE T HERIRE R A
ERMUNMENERTIERE (IHEX
ENDANBEZR Iﬁ$%.ﬂkﬁ
B ttih REBEFEBELMERE
E%W%@Téﬁfﬁﬁﬁ$%%ﬁm
BT - [FBF - AN B JTIER R & F i
X% HAERUERBGREEASER
BERVE S o B0 22 JEHE S75 I Be IO A 5F
P B BEORBEE T — MR A&
EERKE -FHERBETNELE
MEEARRE XK FORE- R
R EEZTENEBHE K RA
SEBEMKEER

BN R M E XSG RBEERE
FEBARNONREBRERFNIEE B
B BB KR TR R (i) AR E K
HEEKHBELRRBEAETHNIERDE
B TEENREBEMR BN A%
EMESEBREEENEMBILER
HAEENEMBEBEE-



In the Group’s Music and entertainment business, during the
Period, a number of music concerts featuring the Group's artists,
such as Julian Cheung Chi-Lam, Barry Ip Man-Fai and Jade Kwan
Sum-Yin, were organized in the Hong Kong Coliseum and the
Kowloon Bay International Trade & Exhibition Centre. The concerts
contributed to approximately 71% of the total revenue of the Music
and entertainment business. Furthermore, the Group has actively
expanded its artiste base and invited more artists, such as Joyce
Cheng Yan-Yee, to join or cooperate with the Group’s subsidiaries in
the entertainment segment.

With regard to the Securities trading business and the Lending
business, the Group has devoted more human and financial resources
to their business development. For the Securities trading business,
the Group has utilized its idle capital and diversified its portfolio to
create value for the Group. The Lending business includes the money
lending business in Hong Kong and the finance lease business in the
PRC. The Group believes that potential in the money lending business
in Hong Kong is substantial, therefore, we have vigorously cooperated
with other money lending companies to develop and expand this
business. To attach greater importance to the future development of
the Lending business, the business segment was separately reported
for the first time in the period ended 31 December 2014.

The Property business includes property development and property
investment in Hong Kong and the PRC. The property investment
includes the mini storage business, a new business commenced in the
fourth quarter of 2014.

Under the property development business, the Group has two
property development projects in Chengdu and Qingyuan. The
development progress of these project is discussed in the “BUSINESS
AND FINANCIAL REVIEW" section in this report.

In the property investment business, the Group has rented out the
commercial office located in Beijing to a third party during the Period.
Besides, the Group has renovated several storeys of the Fanling
Building for the operation of the new mini storage business. More
information about the operation is discussed in the “BUSINESS AND
FINANCIAL REVIEW" section in this report.

All of the business segments mentioned above, existing or new, have
further strengthened and broadened the business portfolio of the
Group.
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For the Period, total revenue of the Group was HK$419.5 million (Year
2013/2014: HK$613.3 million), the gross profit margin for the Period
decreased to 11.5% (1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014: 19.4%). The
distribution of revenue of the Group is as follows:

Nine months

ended 31

December 2014

HE

—E-mE

+=ZA=+—H

N8 A

HK$

BT

Manufacturing segment SED 366,794,179
Trading segment B0 27,074,028
Music and entertainment segment & 4 [ 4R 4 3 £ 25,332,180
Property business MEEH 7,655
Lending business BE£% 305,569
Total revenue ol 419,513,611

This segment principally included manufacturing and sales of printed
products, such as packaging box, labels and paper products. It has
attracted customers from all over the world.

The Group has continued its devotion towards environmental
protection into its daily business management and operation
and promoting environmental awareness within and outside the
organization during the Period. Chung Tai Printing (China) Company
Limited (“Chung Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, was awarded the Hang Seng Pan Pearl River Delta
Environmental Awards 2013/14 — Bronze Award in the Hang Seng
Pan Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards jointly organized by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Hang Seng Bank.
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The revenue from the Manufacturing and Sales business was
HK$366.8 million (Year 2013/2014: HK$571.5 million) and a segment
loss of HK$73.3 million (Year 2013/2014: segment profit: HK$1.2
million) was recorded. The segment loss margin for the Period was
-20.0% (Year 2013/2014: segment profit margin is 0.2%). The
notable contraction in segment profit margin was mainly due to (i) the
decrease in export sales, (i) the increase in staff costs, (iii) the increase
in material cost and (vi) the recognition of impairment loss on non-
current assets in the Manufacturing and Sales business.

1)

The decrease in segment revenue was mainly due to the
decline in export sales during the Period as a result the
reduction in sales orders placed by several major overseas
customers.

In the Manufacturing and Sales business, the ratio of staff
cost to sales has increased from 28.6% in Year 2013/2014 to
approximately 34.6% for the Period. The increase in the ratio
was mainly due to the lifting of minimum wages in Shenzhen
and Guangdong Province. The PRC government has raised
such wage levels from RMB1,600 to RMB1,808, effective
from March 2014. This has added pressure to the staff costs,
including basic and overtime salaries and other related costs.

During the Period, given the prolonged surge in raw material
prices, the Group has maintained its effort in sourcing
alternative materials in the PRC and an initiative was begun
in the second half of the financial year ended 31 March
2014, while the Group is continuously testing the quality of
the sourced materials. Despite the tightened control on raw
materials usage in production, the percentage of raw materials
cost in sales has still increased slightly by 1.2% as compared
with Year 2013/2014 due to the increase in material price.
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V) During the Period, the Group has recognized a one-off
impairment loss amounted to HK$34.0 million in the non-
current assets of the Manufacturing and Sales business. Due
to the Group’s recurring loss in the Manufacturing and Sales
business, the directors of the Company has conducted an
impairment assessment of the segment assets based on value
in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering 5-years period, growth rate of 3% and discount
rate of 15%. Impairment loss is recognised as the recoverable
amount lowered than the carrying amount of respective
segment assets.

The revenue from the Trading business was HK$27.1 million (Year
2013/2014: HK$29.2 million) and a segment profit of HK$1.3 million
(Year 2013/2014: HK$1.6 million) was reported. The increase in
revenue (as compare with the same period last year) was mainly
attributable to the rise in customer demand for 3M products and the
increase in the number of new customers. The segment profit margin
has decreased by 0.8% to 4.6% for the Period, as compared with
5.4% for Year 2013/2014. The decrease in profit margin was mainly
due to the higher sales discount offered to key customers during the
Period.

Revenue from the Music and entertainment business mainly consisted
of income from concerts and shows, artiste management income,
album distribution income, promotion income and song licensing
income.
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During the Period, 70.7% of revenue from the Music and
entertainment business was attributable to concerts and shows. The
Group has organized several music concerts for Julian Cheung Chi-
Lam in the Hong Kong Coliseum, and Barry Ip Man-Fai and Jade
Kwan Sum-Yin in the Kowloon Bay International Trade & Exhibition
Centre. The business has recorded a segment loss of HK$2.3 million
for the Period (Year 2013/2014: segment profit of approximately
HK$89,000). It was mainly due to two reasons: (i) the absence of
promotion income, which is capable of generating a much higher
profit margin, from Neway Karaoke Box Limited, a related company of
the Group, while a promotion income of HK$4 million was recorded
in Year 2013/2014; and (ii) the lower profit margin associated with
concert income, which was a major component of the total revenue
during the Period, and the profit contributed by concerts and shows
was insufficient to cover the fixed operating cost of the Music and
entertainment segment.

During the Period, the Group has devoted more financial resources in
recruiting marketing talents, and engaged several external consultants
to assist in identifying and evaluating potential projects in the PRC.
The Group has invested approximately HK$8.4 million in a Chinese
movie, which was recorded as “trade and other receivables” in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014. This investment is expected to create return to the investors in
Year 2016, based on the schedule provided by the film production
company.

Furthermore, on 21 November 2014, the Company has entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the entire equity interest in Marble Arch, a subsidiary of
Luxury Field for a consideration of approximately HK$28 million.
Marble Arch is the shareholder of the PRC subsidiary which has made
advances to the Group's potential investee, %2 5z. The investment
in Marble Arch was made by the Group in 2012, at that time the
Group had intended to carry out certain projects in the cultural and
entertainment industry through [E<&)Z55. Due to the uncertainty
in obtaining related local government approval, the Company has
determined to dispose of the investment and considered that it would
be more beneficial to the Group to invest the sales proceeds from
such disposal on potential projects with higher investment returns.
The transaction is yet to be completed as at the date of this report
and the completion date of the disposal will be on or before 30 April
2015. No significant gain or loss on disposal is expected.
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During the Period, the Group recorded a fair value gain of
approximately HK$2.5 million and a dividend income of approximately
HK$0.5 million, both contributed by the Hong Kong listed market
securities held by the Group. The Group has rented a new office
in Central and will devote more human resources to the Securities
trading business.

The Group will closely monitor the market and any information
related to prospective investees before committing to any securities
investment. Unless it becomes aware of any securities investment with
great market potential, the Group will maintain the current portfolio
size.

Property development business

The Group had two property development projects as at 31 December
2014, one of which involved HZ#EFEH#E. The property is classified
as an available-for-sale investments in the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2014. The other
property involved /& E 1 Z, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Group.

FEEEFE M E holds the land use rights of a parcel of commercial land
in Chengdu. The related property consisted of both residential and
commercial units. The construction work was commenced in 2014
and is progressing as scheduled. The pre-sales was started in mid-
March 2015 and approximately 5.0% of residential units was pre-sold
as at the date of this report.

)5 EHLE holds the land use rights of two parcels of commercial
land in Qingyuan. On 18 June 2014, FYIFh EHRLEERERA
Al ("R 2[5 "), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against /5 FEHIE in ARYITHTE LR A RER (the
“People’s Court of Baoan District”) for, among other matters, the
repayment of the shareholder’s loan contributed by £ EI% in the
amount of RMB23,479,330 ("Litigation”). On 19 June 2014, pursuant
to an application made by # 2 Bl 8% to freeze and preserve the assets
of F/EREME in the total value of RMB23,400,000, an order was
granted by the People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and preserve
the two parcels of land owned by #/5FE #1Z during the Period from
24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016 (“Freeze Order”). The Freeze Order
aims to ensure that /& BB EE has sufficient assets of value to repay
the shareholder’s loan to the Group.
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Two hearings of the Litigation were held on 18 August 2014 and
25 September 2014. On 15 October 2014, the Group had received
the civil mediation documents (R E##EE ) issued by the People ‘s
Court of Baoan District, which has confirmed that (i) the Group and
BB HLE confirmed that )5 E #1E was indebted to 2 B 5% in
the sum of RMB23,479,330, (ii) )5 F HE agreed to repay to 1 £
Bl 5% the sum of RMB23,479,330, together with the interest accrued
from 18 June 2014 to the date of repayment within 15 days of the
effective date of the civil mediation document; and iii) if F/&E
FE fails to repay the agreed amount, F# 2B 5% shall have the right to
request H)5 S HBEE to pay default interest calculated at two times of
the lending rate of the People’s Bank of China over the same period.

As advised by the Group’s PRC legal advisers, the effective date of the
civil mediation document was 15 October 2014 and the deadline for
repayment by F/5FEH#E was 30 October 2014. Up to the date of
this report, F/EEH#E has not repaid the outstanding shareholder
loan nor any interest to FZBIA. The management is currently
assessing the situation and may take further legal actions to protect
the Group’s interest as and when appropriate. The Company will
make further announcement should there be any further actions in
the future.

Property Investment business

During the Period, the Group has rented out the commercial office
located in Beijing to a third party. Through the property investment,
the Group can have a stable stream of rental income and capital
appreciation opportunities.

Besides, in view of the shortage of storage spaces in Hong Kong
due to the limited land supply from the government, the Group has
optimized the use of the idle spaces in the Group's Fanling Building by
renovating its ground floor, 1st floor and 2nd floor, and the renovated
storeys were turned into a mini storage business. The renovation work
was completed during the Period and the business was commenced
in late November 2014. The target customers are individual and
corporate clients. Based on our internal record, approximately 8%
of the storage units were rented out as at 31 December 2014. The
occupancy rate is expected to increase gradually with our marketing
efforts.
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Furthermore, the Group has decided to renovate half of the floor
areas of the 4th floor of the Fanling Building for warehouse purpose,
which will be targeting corporate clients. The renovation work is
completed as at the date of this report. The more efficient use of the
Fanling Building is expected to bring in a new and stable stream of
income for the Group, and the improved utilization of the idle spaces
in the property will add value to the Group as a whole.

In compliance with the accounting standards of the Group, the
office in Beijing and the renovated floors of the Fanling Building
aforementioned had been re-classified as investment properties as at
the date the usage of the properties was changed. The investment
properties were carried at market value and a fair value gain of
HK$3.9 million was entered into the “other gains or losses” account
of the Company during the Period.

The Lending business includes the financial leasing business in
Shanghai and money lending business in Hong Kong. In light of the
increasingly significant transaction sizes in this business segment of
the Group, a new reporting segment was created under the Lending
business in the Period.

For the financial leasing business, the Group is still in search for
potential transactions and no transaction was entered into during the
Period.

For the money lending business, the Group has devoted more
financial resources to this business during the Period. In order to
facilitate the sourcing for new individual and corporate customers, the
Group has cooperated with several money lending companies in Hong
Kong. To comply with the Company’s internal guidelines, all loans
provided by the Company are secured by either properties or equity
shares of Hong Kong listed companies. During the Period, the loan
interest income was approximately HK$306,000 and the outstanding
loan receivables as at 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$8.9
million. Through actively sourcing new customers, the Lending
business is expected to further expand in 2015.

Annual Report 2014 F

BRI 2 9N ANEREORTE BFT AR T
Bz —+EEEmBENEREME BR
BEPREERFP -EAHMERRZBH
TREETK - EBRMAHEXER
REBEFERERA MEMERYE
AREEZR AR AREEBEREE
(=8

BEAEE &R Pl 2R 2
EFELDEAEACBTINEEER
%%%LE&MEEﬁ“@ﬁhﬁw
¥ SR EWMELETESER  mAHR
8618 7 AN AU 3,900,000 7T 2 A A
ARz [EM Uz R EE | R AR

HMEESBREREBCHEREER X
REBZHEEE BERIESEHR
ScEERBE AEBRBRFIET
ME¥EREDE-

E@ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ* AR AEEDEY
BERS EWBRREGETEMR
%0

EWREERHE £8E R ERIE N
BB ERELERER - BTRAES
BAARTCERR AEBEBERERD
KENRERRIEE A QR REEE
ST FTERARARIEHRNERYA
EMEXRBTAE LT RRMRAERE
T HAA - B3 F B ULA £9306,000%
TR ZE—NF+_-_A=+—8" K&
2 7 FEUE 3 498,900,000 7T - I E ¥
BEEGRNEZHNERE Bt 2518
BE-_Z—RAFHE—FER-



The Group has commenced a new business, the slot machine
business, during the Period. The slot machine business is positioned
to capitalize on the abundant opportunities surfacing in the Asian
gaming landscape. The Group sees an exciting future for the gaming
industry in regions including but not limited to Japan, Taiwan,
Macau, Singapore, Malaysia, and Korea. With a team of experienced
employees from the gaming industries, the business is operating
efficiently and the Group expects the slot machine technology shall be
available in early 2016, by then the Group will be able to gain a solid
foothold in the regulated gaming market. The Group will continue to
execute the strategy as planned and capture any opportunities arisen
in the gaming industry. It will also closely monitor the development
progress of the business segment and keep a close watch over the
market situation in a cautious manner.

Other gains and losses comprised the following major items:

Net foreign exchange (losses) gain
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(Loss) gain on disposal of property,
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plant and equipment (E#E) K=

Impairment loss recognised on AHEEREZE®R
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Fair value changes in investment properties REMENRFEZE)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of B I 2t 2 B RIBE
plant and equipment (Note 2) EtE (Hatz)

Change in fair value of held-for-trading HEEEREZRATE
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Note:

The Group has signed a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of all of its shares in this
company subsequent to the year-end date of Year 2013/2014. The
impairment loss was measured at the difference between the disposal
consideration and the net carrying value (before impairment) of these
shares as at 31 March 2014.

During the Period, the Group has recognized an impairment loss in
respect of the plant and equipment of the Manufacturing and sales
business.

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 and 31 March 2014:

Current ratio
Quick ratio
Gearing ratio (%)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

MENEL &
EE) LK
BERELE%)

Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total
current liabilities as at the end of the year/period .

Quick ratio is calculated by dividing the difference between total
current assets and inventories (including properties under development
for sale) by total current liabilities as at the end of the year/period.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity
as at the end of the year/period and then multiplying it by 100%.
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group had short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$248.8 million
(31 March 2014: HK$232.5 million) and short-term borrowings of
approximately HK$10.5 million (31 March 2014: HK$18.7 million).
The liquidity of the Group remained strong and healthy as compared
with Year 2013/2014. The gearing ratio decreased by 50% as
compared with 31 March 2014 due to the early repayment of other
borrowings secured by the machinery of the PRC factory under a
finance lease arrangement.

Both current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December 2014 have
improved as compared with 31 March 2014, mainly attributable
to (i) the increase in short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents due to two share placements conducted during the
Period and (ii) on 31 December 2014, a sum of advances to potential
investees was reclassified from non-current assets to current assets.
The advances were held by a former subsidiary of the Group, which
the Group had entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 21
November 2014 to dispose of.

The Group generally finances its operation with internally-generated
cash flows and bank facilities granted in Hong Kong and the PRC.
During the Period, the Company also conducted two placing of
new shares to strengthen the financial position of the Group and
provide funding to the Group to meet any future development
and obligations. Taking into account the amount of the anticipated
internally-generated funds, banking facilities available and the
proceeds from the placing as mentioned above, the Group has
adequate resources to meet its future capital expenditure and
working capital requirements. The Group will continue to implement
its prudent policy in managing cash balances, thereby maintaining
a strong and healthy liquidity level and ensuring that any business
growth opportunities are to be promptly seized.
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Set out below are fund raising activities conducted by the Company
during the Period and the usage of the net proceeds up to 31
December 2014.

(i) On 15 August 2014, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has appointed the placing agent to procure, as
placing agent of the Company, not less than six placees
to subscribe, failing which the placing agent itself shall
subscribe, for 203,860,000 shares of the Company at a
price of HK$0.163 per share. The aggregate nominal value
of the placing shares is HK$10,193,000. The net issue price
is approximately HK$0.158 per share. The placing price
represents a discount of approximately 18.91% to the
closing price of HK$0.201 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 15 August 2014, which is the date of the
placing agreement. Completion of the placing took place
on 28 August 2014. The net proceeds from the placing is
approximately HK$32.2 million and is intended to be utilised
for general working capital of the Group. As at 31 December
2014, the net proceeds from the placing has not yet utilised.

(ii) On 25 September 2014, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has appointed the placing agent to procure, as
placing agent of the Company, not less than six placees
to subscribe, failing which the placing agent itself shall
subscribe, for 244,640,000 shares of the Company at a
price of HK$0.156 per share. The aggregate nominal value
of the placing shares is HK$12,232,000. The net issue price
is approximately HK$0.151 per share. The placing price
represents a discount of approximately 18.75% to the
closing price of HK$0.192 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 25 September 2014, which is the date of the
placing agreement. Completion of the placing took place
on 7 October 2014. The net proceeds from the placing is
approximately HK$37 million and is intended to be utilised as
to about 50% for general working capital of the Group and
as to about 50% for potential property investment. As at 31
December 2014, the net proceeds from the placing has not yet
utilised.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the share capital and
capital structure of the Company for the Period.
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Strong support will be provided to the Manufacturing and Sales
business for the sake of enhancing the existing customer relationships
and building up relationships with potential new customers. The
Group will continue to dedicate its effort in strengthening other
established businesses, such as the Trading business, the Music and
entertainment business, Securities trading, the Property business and
the Lending business. The new slot machine business will be further
developed at the same time. Besides, the Group will also continue to
cautiously search for projects with tremendous potentials in the PRC
and overseas. It will remain committed to this diversification strategy
to generate stable returns and promising business growth to its
shareholders.

Cost reduction and efficiency enhancement will be the major
initiatives of the Group in the coming year. The management would
enhance efficiency by improving the existing production processes, so
as to reduce production wastage, increase productivity and maintain
consistent product qualities. In addition, the Group will continue to
implement the cost tightening policy, which entails closely monitoring
operating costs and streamlining the organization structure, hence
efficiency can be enhanced and the internal communication improved
for the Group as a whole.

The Group will continue to recruit skilled talents, especially
salesperson, whom the Group will provide full support to strengthen
existing customer relationships and build up business networks with
new customers. At the same times, the Group plan to work with
the overseas sales agents to expand market shares across the globe.
Furthermore, the Group is developing an effective and fair reward
system for employees, which acts as an encouragement to employees
by recognizing their personal achievements, thus deepening their
loyalty to the Group.

The Group will increase the overall efficiency, expand customer
networks, and overcome all difficulties brought by the uncertain
global economy and the rising cost pressure in the PRC in the coming
year in a prudent manner.
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The Group will continue to broaden its artiste base while further
diversify the services provided by its artistes, so as to broaden its
income base. Approximately twelve entertainment companies are
currently releasing their physical and digital products through our
established platform. The Group targets to onboard three more
entertainment companies in 2015 and further expand the distribution
platform. Besides, the Group currently has twenty contracted artists
who will distribute their music and songs through our subsidiaries,
while we target to sign up two to three artists in 2015. Currently,
most of our artiste management services are rendered in Hong Kong,
we will further expand the service to the PRC and regions outside
Hong Kong.

On 11 February 2015, the Group has entered into a share subscription
agreement to subscribe for approximately 4.41% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Soliton Holdings Limited (“Soliton”), a
company which provides a cloud-based, cross-device digital music
streaming service with over 1,700,000 music tracks and videos.
The subsidiaries of Soliton are currently providing digital music
streaming services to the Group’s subsidiaries under the Music and
entertainment business. Through the share subscription, the Group
will be able to create synergy with the target company, which
paves ways for the Group to extend such cooperation to other
entertainment-related projects.

Besides, the Group will continue to seek investment and cooperation
opportunities in the entertainment industry, both in the PRC and
overseas, especially in the field of high quality teleplays and low-
budget movies. During the Period, the Group has for the first time
invested in the movie industry in the PRC. The Group will constantly
review the submitted teleplays and film scripts, and will only invest in
film productions with promising scripts and profit potentials.
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The Group will closely monitor the market and any information
related to prospective investees before committing to any securities
investment. Unless it becomes aware of any securities investment with
great market potential, the Group will maintain the current portfolio
size.

For the Property business, the Group will devote more resources in
developing the mini storage business and increase the occupancy
rate of the Fanling Building by implementing various promotion and
marketing activities. Furthermore, the Group is cooperating with
experienced partners to actively search for potential spaces within
Hong Kong for further development. Such spaces will be renovated
as mini storage or service offices for rental purpose. The cooperation
with experienced partners has reduced the funding burden of
the Group and the business partners can also contribute their
management experiences to the cooperation.

The Group has commenced its Lending business in Hong Kong and
the PRC since the end of 2013. After a year of learning, and through
cooperating with money lending companies in Hong Kong, the Group
has familiarized itself with the money lending market in Hong Kong
and will devote more financial resources to develop the Lending
business in the coming year. The management is actively seeking
potential transactions with high return and acceptable level of risk
to invest in. All loans provided by the Group are secured by either
properties or equity shares of Hong Kong listed companies. No default
has occurred since the commencement of business. The Group will
closely monitor the repayment abilities of borrowers and cautiously
perform risk assessments on each loan application before granting.
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The Group's sales and purchases are principally denominated in
Renminbi, HK dollar and US dollar. Except for Renminbi, there was no
significant fluctuation in the exchange rate of HK dollar and US dollar
throughout the year. The management will closely monitor the foreign
exchange rate risk of Renminbi, and identify any significant adverse
impact on the PRC operations as caused by such risk. If required, the
Group may engage in hedging activities. For the Period, the Group
had not used any financial instruments for hedging purpose, and it
had not had any outstanding hedging instruments as at 31 December
2014.

For the Period, capital expenditure of the Group for property, plant
and equipment amounted to approximately HK$7.1 million (Year
2013/2014: HK$11.3 million). The capital expenditure for the Period
was mainly used to acquire machinery for the production in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$13.2 million (31 March 2014: HK$15.1 million)
for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments, which had been contracted for but had not been
recognized in the financial statements. The Group did not have
any capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment that had been authorized but not contracted for in both
reporting periods.

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2014 (31 March 2014: Nil).
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As at 31 December 2014, the Group has pledged a leasehold building
and investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$86.5 million to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group (31 March 2014: HK$28.2 million).

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment was pledged to secure other borrowings granted to the
Group (31 March 2014: HK$8.6 million).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had approximately 1,920
full-time employees (31 March 2014: approximately 2,320). Total
staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) for the Period was
approximately HK$138.0 million (Year 2013/2014: HK$173.3 million).
The remuneration schemes are generally determined with reference
to market conditions and the qualifications of the employees. The
reward packages for the staff member in the Group are generally
reviewed on an annual basis, depending on the staff member’s and
the Group’s performance. Apart from salary payments, other staff
benefits consist of contributions to the retirement benefit scheme,
participation in share option scheme, and medical insurance for
eligible employees. In-house and external training programmes are
provided as and when required.

Save for the proposed disposal of Marble Arch as discussed above, the
Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries
or associated companies during the Period.
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On 28 January 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement with
an independent third party. Pursuant to the agreement, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group agreed to grant a loan to the borrower
in the principal amount of HK$20,000,000, bearing interest at a rate
of 3% per month for a period of one month. The loan was secured
by a first legal charge over certain shares held by the borrower in a
company, whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The loan was subsequently
repaid as at the date of this report.

On 11 February 2015, Neway Entertainment Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, entered into a share subscription agreement
with Soliton, to subscribe for approximately 4.41% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Soliton at a consideration of US$1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$7,780,000). The subscription has been completed
as at the date of this report.

On 18 February 2015, Luxury Field signed a supplemental agreement
on the disposal of Marble Arch with the purchaser to extend the
date of completion of the transaction to a date on or before 30
April 2015. Also, Luxury Field has received a partial consideration of
HK$1,500,000 from the purchaser.

On 3 March 2015, the Group entered into a loan agreement with an
independent third party, pursuant to which a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group agreed to grant a loan to the borrower in the principal
amount of HK$11,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 15% per
annum for a term of twelve months. The loan was secured by a first
legal charge over certain properties located in Hong Kong, a rental
assignment in respect of the said properties and a guarantee provided
by three individuals.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the nine months
ended 31 December 2014.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company's
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company's operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”). The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices and to reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development of the Group.

The Company has complied with most of the code provisions set out
in the CG Code, save for certain deviations from the code provisions
which are explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.

The overall management of the Company'’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to its shareholders. Every
director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board currently comprises eight members, which include
two executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee)

Alternate director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Chief Executive Officer, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Chairman. The detailed relationships among members
of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Executives” on pages 39 to 42.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Board has
at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. During the nine months ended
31 December 2014, the Company also has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of
the Board.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the operations
of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running the
Company's businesses and developing and implementing the Group's
strategic plans and business goals.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are uncle and
nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.
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Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG code stipulates that the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors), without the
executive directors present. The Chairman during the nine months
ended 31 December 2014, namely Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, was
himself an executive director and as such, compliance with this code
provision was infeasible.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, and each of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed
for a term of 3 years from 5 April 2013 to 4 April 2016. Save as
Mr. LEE, all other non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors have a term of appointment which commenced
from 1 April 2013 and will continue for a period of three years until
31 March 2016. The term of appointment of each director is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company's Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process.

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development will be arranged for the
directors whenever necessary.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, all existing
directors confirmed that they had complied with the Code Provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code by reading all materials provided by the
Company Secretary and/or attending trainings on the topics relating
to corporate governance and latest change and development of
regulatory regime launched by professional parties. The Company had
received the training records from each of the directors.
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Ms. Cheung Yuk Shan joined the Group as the company secretary
of the Company since 23 August 2010. In her capacity acting as the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Cheung reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. Ms. Cheung has undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company's Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
respective associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Board
had four meetings, two of which were regular Board meetings for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance of
the Group. The Company did not announce its quarterly results and
hence did not consider the holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.
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Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued) EEHELLF (&)

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of LNTEASREENEHEZE_E—UE
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, and at the +ZA=+t—HILEAEAKR LFESE
General Meetings for the nine months ended 31 December 2014 is ees ERLTEeeR THEEee
set out below: mEBRRERE ek

Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship
ESHEAZEEAR EERY

Audit Remuneration General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
=R gz ENZE. ¥Hzag BEAE
Executive Directors BiTES
— Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie -EBEBEE 4/4 N/A N/A 11
(Chairman) () TEA TEA
— Mr. SUEK Chai Hong —BEEEE 44 N/A N/A 11
(Chief Executive Officer) (7TB483) TEA TEA
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
— Dr. NG Wai Kwan -REMET 4/4 N/A N/A 11
TEA TEA
~ Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —RIMM LA 4/4 N/A N/A "N
TEA TER
~ Mr. WONG Sun Fat —ENRELE (BEERER 4/4 22 1/1 11
(member of Audit Committee and HHWZEE/8)
Remuneration Committee)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEHTES
— Mr. TSE Tin Tai ~BARRE 4/4 N/A N/A 01
TEA TER
~Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of BB LT 4/4 22 11 171
Audit committee and member of (BEZE2TRER
Remuneration Committee) HHWZE2/8)
— Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman of ~FEEELE 4/4 212 11 1/1
Remuneration Committee and (HHZRe+ER
member of Audit Committee) FEZEEME)
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all the directors of the
Company and they have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (“Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in
all major matters of the Company including: the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of objectives and
overall strategies, internal controls and risk management systems,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of
interests), appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the senior executives.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by these senior executives and the Board has
the full support of them to discharge their responsibilities.
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All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, and Investment
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee, throughout the nine months ended
31 December 2014, comprises three members, namely Mr. LEE Kwok
Wan (Chairman), Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily and Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Remuneration of each director is determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer in
relation to its proposals relating to the remuneration of the executive
directors and have access to professional advice at the Company's
expense, if necessary.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee has held one meeting to review the remuneration of the
directors and senior management and made recommendation to the
Board.

The written terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.
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For the purpose of effective and timely management of investment
matters of the Company, and in order to cope with the Company’s
business development in the future, a committee of the Board
known as Investment Management Committee was established in
March 2014 for identifying, assessing and analyzing all investment
opportunities for the Group and to make recommendations on
acquisition or disposal to the directors from time to time.

The Investment Management Committee, throughout the nine
months ended 31 December 2014, comprised four members, namely,
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman), Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN
Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms. CHEUNG Yuk Shan, who possesses
experience and familiarity with financial and investment analysis.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Investment
Management Committee has held five meetings and all members of
the Investment Management Committee attended the meetings.

The Board has not established a nomination committee at present,
which was in deviation of Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG
Code. The Board considers the determination of the appointment and
removal of directors to be the Board’s collective decision. The Board
will identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
when necessary. The Board considers potential directorship based on
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience and knowledge as
well as the requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. For the
nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Board reviewed the
Company's status of compliance with the CG Code.
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The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 1 September
2013 ("Board Diversity Policy”). In assessing the Board composition,
the Board would consider various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the nine months ended
31 December 2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information put to the Board for approval and the
financial position of the Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets. The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to
the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.
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The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2014. Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and
risk management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee, throughout the nine months ended 31
December 2014, comprised three non-executive directors, Ms. LUI
Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman), Mr. WONG Sun Fat and Mr. LEE Kwok
Wan, the majority of them are independent non-executive directors
(including at least one independent non-executive director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The written terms of reference for the Audit Committee is posted on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to shareholders
upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee
has held two meetings and reviewed the Group's annual results
and annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014 and interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2014. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed with the management the Group's
accounting policies and discussed auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters of the Group and reported to the Board
on material issues, if any, and made recommendations to the Board.
It has also reviewed the work performed and fees charged by the
external auditors and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of external auditors.

The Company's final results for the nine months ended 31 December
2014 has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 58 to 59.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the remuneration
paid to the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services amounted to HK$1.6 million and
HK$0.2 million respectively.
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The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and for
the shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.
External auditors, the Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings to answer questions from the shareholders.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company'’s principal place of business.
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Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meeting
shall follow the above procedures for the deposit of requisition for a
general meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the company secretary of
the Company.

The Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on their shareholdings and
related share registration matters.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after the shareholders’ meeting.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 36, was appointed as chairman of
the Company since August 2009. He has been an executive director
of the Company since July 2004 and chief executive officer since
November 2007 until 31 August 2009. Mr. SUEK obtained an EMBA
degree and a master degree in marketing from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He has 2 years of
experience in investment banking and subsequently moved on to
commercial sector and has been a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK possesses sophisticated and professional
management experience and familiar with investment analysis. He
is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business development and
to search for business opportunities in the PRC market and overseas.
Mr. SUEK received a remuneration of HK$2,160,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the son of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior
executive and controlling shareholder of the Company, the nephew
of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company, and Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 53, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company since August 2009, he has been
the Company’s executive director since 1992. Mr. SUEK obtained
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Finance from York
University, Canada, he has more than 20 years of experience in
marketing and is responsible for running the Company’s businesses
and developing and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and
business goals. Mr. SUEK received a remuneration of HK$1,260,000
per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
executive director and chairman of the Company, the brother-in-law
of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive of the Company; both
of whom are also controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 65, was appointed as the Company’s
non-executive director in March 2007. Dr. NG holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in United Kingdom.
Dr. NG has over 30 years' experience in procurement, logistic planning
and leadership development.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Dr. NG
and the Group, Dr. NG is appointed for a specific term of 3 years
commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Dr. NG’s
remuneration was increased from HK$85,000 per annum to
HK$100,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Dr. NG is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and
chairman of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as
a non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr.
CHAN is the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants (UK) and the associate member of the Institute of
the Chartered Accounts in England and Wales and the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries & Administrators (UK) and the Chartered Global
Management Accountant.

Mr. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in financial management,
corporate administration and corporate finance in several
multinational corporations and public-listed companies.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr. CHAN
and the Group, Mr. CHAN is appointed for a specific term of 3 years
commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr. CHAN's
remuneration was increased from HK$135,000 per annum to
HK$150,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 59, is a non-executive director of the
Company, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since December 1994 until August 2009. Mr.
WONG was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
in August 2009. He is now a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
over 30 years’ of experience in electronics products business and has
vast experience in manufacturing operations.
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Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG and the Group, Mr. WONG is appointed for a specific term
of 3 years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr.
WONG's remuneration was increased from HK$85,000 per annum to
HK$100,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from York University, Canada and has
over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing field in information
technology related companies.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr. TSE
and the Group, Mr. TSE is appointed for a specific term of 3 years
commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr. TSE's
remuneration was increased from HK$85,000 per annum to
HK$100,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily, aged 50, holds a master degree of science
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration.
She is also an affiliate member of the Association of International
Accountant. Ms. LUl has more than 15 years’ experience in financial
management, financial accounting, human resources management
and company secretarial field. She is at present manager of a sizeable
company in Hong Kong, overseeing the company’s financial and
human resources management and company secretarial affairs.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Ms. LUI
and the Group, Ms. LUl is appointed for a specific term of 3
years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Ms.
LUI's remuneration was increased from HK$85,000 per annum to
HK$100,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 47, holds a MBA degree in Business
Administration and a bachelor’s degree in the Commerce and
Accountancy and is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. LEE has more than 15 years of
accounting and management experience. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of a sizable company in Hong Kong engaging in manufacture
of watches. He was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company from March 2007 to May 2008.
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Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
and the Group, Mr. LEE is appointed for a specific term from 5 April
2013 until 4 April 2016. Mr. LEE's remuneration was increased from
HK$85,000 per annum to HK$100,000 per annum since 1 April 2015.

Mr. LEE is currently an independent non-executive director of QPL
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 243), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 52, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, in July
2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU joined the
Group in 2001. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
and a master degree in Professional Accounting from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing in United Kingdom and has over 20 years of experience in
management, sales and marketing.

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela has over 30 years' experience in label
and screen process printing business. She holds a master degree in
Business Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a
Honorary doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from
Burkes University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom. Dr. NG is
the President of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung Tai
Printing (China) Company Limited and also a senior executive of the
Company. She is responsible for the daily management of the printing
business.

Ms. NG Wai Chi has over 30 years of experience in label and
silkscreen printing. She is the Vice President of Chung Tai Printing
Company Limited and Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
and she is responsible for the corporate social responsibility and
quality management of the Group.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas is a director of various companies
under music and entertainment division of the Group, he was the
human resources manager of Neway Karaoke Box for the period
from 2001 to 2007 before being appointed as an executive director
thereof. Mr. WAN has over 15 years of experience in the related fields
of management and holds a bachelor’s degree in human resources
management from Hong Kong Baptist University and a master of
science degree of Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the nine months ended 31 December 2014.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the nine months ended 31 December
2014 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 60 to 61.

No interim dividend of was paid to the shareholders during the nine
months ended 31 December 2014.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
nine months ended 31 December 2014 (year ended 31 March 2014:
Nil).

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the
nine months ended 31 December 2014 at an aggregate cost of
approximately HK$17.7 million in order to increase its production
capacity. Details of this and other movements in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the nine
months ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$558.4 million.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the past five financial years is set out on page 188.

The directors of the Company during the nine months ended 31
December 2014 and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Dr. NG Wai Kwan (alternate director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,
Warren
Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Mr. TSE Tin Tai
Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Chan Kwing Choi, Warren, Mr. Tse Tin Tai and Mr. Lee Kwok Wan
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM") of the
Company. Retiring directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for

re-election at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 87(2).
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No director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

At 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
were as follows:

Name of director

EEpS

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie

BEETE H o

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner
EEERYE EnEAA

Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner
RERELT EmEEA

Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner
mITEEE ExEEA

Note:

1. These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited

("CNA") which in turn is beneficially owned by the Preserve
Capital Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Suek Ka Lun,
Ernie, the beneficiaries of which include certain family member
of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie and a charitable institution set up in

Hong Kong.

Capacity
Egv)

Other interests
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EZEGMATEEE HIRE EmEITA
ERETEFRZINRLESTRIEMNE R
RAIME Rz =T

Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital

ordinary  of the Company

shares held {5 ARE&#1T

BEERERHA RAET DL

398,720,000 27.16%

7,000,000 0.48%

80,000 0.01%

800,000 0.05%
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At 31 December 2014, CNA beneficially owned deferred non-
voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the Company:

R-_Z—WNFEF+-_A=+—8"
CNAE A ARRA THH B A
A2 R ERER R -

Number and par value of

Name of subsidiary Name of owner deferred non-voting shares
MEBLRRE BEAE® EBRERELR 2¥E REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PREEARADA 20 BRRE{ETE T
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each

RRENR (B AR AR

Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA
RREIRBR A

Profit Link Investment Limited CNA
FARREEREEARAA
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited CNA

HER A ENRI B BR A7)

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 December 2014.
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At 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
substantial shareholders (other than the directors or chief executive
of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance were as follows:

Name of shareholder Capacity
KRR E B 14
CNA' Beneficial owner
Em#EE A
Fiducia Suisse SA Trustee
ZFEA
David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation

RIZFIER 2 #as

Rebecca Ann HilP Interest of spouse
Fl B
Notes:
1. CNA is beneficially owned by the Preserve Capital Trust, a discretionary

trust set up by Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, the beneficiaries of which
include certain family member of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie and a

charitable institution set up in Hong Kong.

2. These 398,720,000 shares duplicate with those held by CNA.

3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill.

RZE—MOF+=—A= + B Izzﬂx
%(ZJS RIZEELEETT
RAR TT;z,Eﬁ;’i%%&Hﬁ {|71<1§U%3361|7k
F&zafMh Ttk 2 AR R 5 K& 48
B EmSORBIT -

LS

Percentage of

the issued

share capital

Number of  of the Company
shares held {5 AR E&#1T

FrERo A BAE DL
398,720,000 27.16%
398,720,000 27.16%
398,720,000 27.16%
398,720,000 27.16%

Hat -

1. CNAH Preserve Capital Trust (—TA M EE52
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3. David Henry Christopher HillZ B2 {& ©
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On 13 February 2014, a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants (including employees and
directors of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interest) as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the day on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted which was
101,935,456 shares of HK$0.05 each, representing approximately
6.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this report. The shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the
Company (or the subsidiaries) in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Share options granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be approved by
the independent non-executive directors. Share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue and having an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the shares on the offer date of the share option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or
more board lots of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of the share option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a shares. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, no share option
was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company. There was no outstanding share option granted under the
Share Option Scheme as at 1 April 2014 and 31 December 2014.

At no time during the nine months ended 31 December 2014 was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

The spouse of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun is a shareholder of a private company
which is principally engaged in artiste management business. Save
as aforesaid, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors, the
controlling Shareholders and their respective close associates had
any business or interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Other than as disclosed in note 41(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the nine months ended 31 December 2014 or
at any time during the nine months ended 31 December 2014.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the Group has
entered into certain continuing connected transactions, details of
which are set out below:

1. Sharing of office

Neway Entertainment Limited and/or its subsidiaries (“Neway
Entertainment Group”) (being wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) entered into a renewed licence agreement with
Neway Karaoke Box Limited (“Neway Karaoke Box") pursuant
to which Neway Karaoke Box agreed to grant a license to
Neway Entertainment Group to occupy and use certain areas
at Unit 801-2, 8/F East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Office”) at a license fee
of HK$30,000 per month for a term commencing 1 November
2013 and ending on 31 March 2015.
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Sharing of office (Continued)

Neway Entertainment Group is currently occupying the Office
as its head office. The license fee was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties having regard to the
prevailing market rates of similar commercial properties in the
same vicinity.

Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly wholly-owned by a
discretionary trust for the benefits of members of SUEK Family.

Provision of staff quarter

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
a tenancy agreement with Pimo Group Limited for renting a
residential premises at House 21, Windsor Park, Phase Il, 1 Ma
Lok Path, Shatin, New Territories as staff quarter at a monthly
rental of HK$83,333 for a term of two years commencing 1
November 2013. Pimo Group Limited is a company, of which
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive Director, is one of the
beneficial owners.

Sale of goods

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, Chung
Tai Printing (China) Company Limited sold certain goods to a
company of which Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher is one of the
ultimate beneficial owners.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Since all the applicable ratios
are less than 5% and the total consideration of each of the
respective transactions is less than HK$3,000,000, they are
exempted from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Neway Entertainment Group provides services (which include
promotion services and distribution of licensed content in the form
of karaoke music videos to the karaoke outlets operated by Neway
Karaoke Box and its subsidiaries (“Neway Karaoke Box Group”) to
Neway Karaoke Box Group. Such transactions constitute continuing
connected transaction for the Company. On 19 March 2012, a Master
Agreement was signed to regulate the provision of the promotion
services and the distribution of licensed content.

Parties

(A) Neway Entertainment Limited (for itself and on behalf of other
members of Neway Entertainment Group); and

(B) Neway Karaoke Box (for itself and on behalf of other members
of Neway Karaoke Box Group). Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly
wholly-owned by a discretionary trust for the benefits of
members of SUEK Family, and therefore, a connected person
of the Company.

Term

Commenced on 1 April 2012 and ending on 31 March 2015.
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Promotion services

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group to
provide promotion services (which may include interviews by media,
TV commercials, photo shooting, performance at public functions) to
be performed by the artistes managed from time to time by Neway
Entertainment Group on terms to be mutually agreed on a case by
case basis, such terms not being more favourable as those provided by
Neway Entertainment Group to independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a service fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on commercial negotiation making reference to the type of promotion
services to be provided, the working hours, skills and popularity
required of the artistes. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make
payment of the service fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit
note issued by Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

Distribution of licensed content

During the term of the Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group
to distribute licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by Neway Karaoke Box Group on terms
to be mutually agreed on a case by case basis, such terms not being
more favourable as those provided by Neway Entertainment Group to
independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a license fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on the number of karaoke music videos and the popularity required
of the artistes. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment of the
licence fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note issued by
Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the service fee for
provision of promotion services and the licensed fee for distribution
of licensed content charged by Neway Entertainment Group to
Neway Karaoke Box Group are HK$nil and HK$1,900,000 respectively
totalling HK$1,900,000.
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The annual caps of the service fee for the provision of the promotion
services and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed content
payable by Neway Karaoke Box Group are set out as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HK$13,000,000

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HK$14,000,000

For the year ending 31 March 2015 HK$14,000,000

The cap amounts are determined by reference to, among other things,
historical figures of the services fees and licensed fee charged by
Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group and the
projected development and promotion plan of Neway Entertainment
Group and Neway Karaoke Box Group.

The Company has followed the policies and guidelines when
determining the prices and terms of the continuing connected
transactions.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported to the Board that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to external auditors’ attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company.

nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

with respect to the aggregate amount of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
external auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 19 March 2012 made
by the Company in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

The directors confirm that the related party transactions as disclosed
in note 41(a) in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Throughout the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the
Company applied the principles of and complied with all the code
provisions of CG Code, save for certain deviations. Details of the
corporate governance practices are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 25 to 38.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
nine months ended 31 December 2014.

The Group's largest supplier accounted for 5.0% of total purchases
while the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 16.4% of total
purchases for the nine months ended 31 December 2014.

The Group's largest customer accounted for 10.5% of total turnover
while the Group's five largest customers were accounted for 26.5%
of total turnover for the nine months ended 31 December 2014.

At no time during the nine months ended 31 December 2014 did
a director, a close associate of a director or a shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) have a beneficial interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers during
the nine months ended 31 December 2014.
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A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs. AATBRBREBAFA® HE2ERE
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. £) o BEMR T L ETANTT A AR B 1% EAD
LIORER o

On behalf of the Board RERESE=

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie E

Chairman EEB

Hong Kong, 27 March 2015 E8 - —E—RF=A=-++H
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Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 186,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
nine months ended 31 December 2014, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the nine months ended 31
December 2014 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Interest income

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other gains and losses

Finance costs

Share of result of a joint venture

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the period/year

Other comprehensive income
(expense):

Item that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations

[tem that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Surplus on transfer from property,

plant and equipment to
investment properties

Other comprehensive income (expense)

for the period/year

Total comprehensive expense
for the period/year
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NOTES
iokz3

W %5 6
& A AR

E7
B WA
H W A
HE KX
TR X
H b e a5 J 5 18 7
BERA 8
BE—RAEZERAZ
E S

bR Al 18
HIE 11

KE S FEE 12

HttZEWA (FX) :

HEAJEFHDEE
B HE -
BEIBINEI T

EECZELEZR

HETEEHNAEE
RaZHE -
M- WE M

REERE
WEMERZBH

AEFHM2EBA
(Fx)

AH/FRERXER

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
kS
MA—BRZE
—E—MF

+t=A=+—-A

HK$
BT

419,513,611
(371,282,288)

48,231,323
3,981,708
1,535,246

(23,596,357)
(79,764,698)
(29,852,510)

(566,890)

454,708

(79,577,470)
734,328

(78,843,142)

1,799,175

56,223,266

58,022,441

(20,820,701)

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—ET—=F
MA—B=E
—ZT—F
=A=+—H
HK$

BT
613,269,305

(494,486,496)

118,782,809
4,859,568
1,401,466

(35,193,132)

(103,444,098)
(6,099,579)
(814,015)

(23,595)

(20,530,576)
(1,219,132)

(21,749,708)

(656,396)

(656,396)

(22,406,104)



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Loss for the period/year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
for the period/year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic

NOTES
iokz3

AT AL REEAR,
FER:
ZA/NIEZ 2SN
FEIER R 2

AN AL REEARE,
FREM B
ZAN/NIEZ 2SN
IR 2

FREE
HAR 14

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
kS
MA—BR=ZE
—E—MF

+t=A=+—-A

HK$
BT

(78,637,472)

(205,670)

(78,843,142)

(20,693,448)
(127,253)

(20,820,701)

(6.61) HK cents &1L

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—ET—=F
MA—B=E
—ZT—F
=A=+—H
HK$

BT

(21,015,858)
(733,850)

(21,749,708)

(21,476,056)
(930,048)

(22,406,104)

(2.06) HK cents 311l
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At 31 December 2014
R-ZE—WFSf—A=4+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties
Deposits for land use rights
Intangible assets
Available-for-sale investments
Loan to available-for-sale investees

Derivative financial instrument
Loan to a joint venture

Interests in a joint venture
Advances to potential investees

Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Current assets
Inventories and record masters
Properties under development for sale
Held-for-trading investments
Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Loan to available-for-sale investees
Loans receivable

Prepaid lease payments

Amount due from a related company
Advance to potential investees

Tax recoverable

Short-term bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
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KREHZER

RMTYBERIREDZ
K
EfREYE-
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MENEE

FERER G
HEERPME
BIEEERE
Z 5 K H A fEUL
FRIE B RE
ARET®
BT SR
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FEWE K
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FRIE
BTEBEWIRERZ
7PN
A U B 7 A
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ReEMREEE

NOTES
Wit

15
16
17
18
19
20

21
20

22

22

23

24
25
26
27
21
28
16
29

23

30
30

31.12.2014
—E-mE

+t=A=+-8

HK$
BT

166,027,537
31,372,648
85,265,187
18,314,705

5,317,632
16,315,359

33,108,583
6,268,198

5,355,000

431,121

900,338

368,676,308

54,101,903
46,786,144
10,081,840

171,482,939

1,810,489
8,915,000
718,071

2,687,903
25,009,379
1,536,489
155,984,369
92,770,073

571,884,599

31.3.2014
—E—mOF
=A=+—H
HK$

BT
226,343,098
31,938,061
18,289,547
5,317,632

23,738,802

30,995,269
6,268,198

3,976,413

24,975,025

10,598,669

382,440,714

80,100,544
46,370,460
25,668,800

125,503,906

716,916

4,034,056

619,161
104,753,853
127,719,903

515,487,599



At 31 December 2014
R-ZE—WFSf—A=4+—H

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E2-QmEF —ZT-mE
+=A=+-8 =A=+—H
NOTES HK$ HK$
Bt BT BT
Current liabilities MEEE
Trade and other payables and accruals H 5 I H th < 5018
VA R & 51 50 T8 31 78,453,542 75,507,600
Tax liabilities MIEBE 5,486,783 4,720,265
Amount due to a non-controlling ER—KH B F]
shareholder of a subsidiary —ZIEER
BRI 32 18,937,500 18,731,269
Borrowings BE 33 10,457,500 18,716,112
113,335,325 117,675,246
Net current assets MEVEEFE 458,549,274 397,812,353
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERE 827,225,582 780,253,067
Non-current liability FEmBEE
Deferred taxation IR AE R IE 34 5,829,799 7,484,799
Net assets BEFE 821,395,783 772,768,268
Capital and reserves BERRFHE
Share capital &% 7 35 73,392,728 50,967,728
Reserves i 748,242,620 721,912,852
Total attributable to owners of KAREE AELES
the Company 821,635,348 772,880,580
Non-controlling interests FEE IR (239,565) (112,312)
Total equity e 4a 5 821,395,783 772,768,268

HNFOEEFE186E 2 HEHRERCH
BEEeN _E—RFE=A=-F++tB#E
REETE WHUATESERAREE:

The financial statements on pages 60 to 186 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2015 and
are signed on its behalf by:

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie & &= B
Chairman % J&

SUEK Chai Hong B & E
Director %
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BFE_FT—mFEL_A=+—HILLIEAA

At 1 Apiil 2013

Loss for the year
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Transfer to retained profits upon
expiry of Put Option ended on
30 September 2013

Recognition of shareholder
contribution upon extension of
Put Option period on
30 September 2013 (note 36)

Transfer to retained profits upon
expiry of Put Option ended on
31 March 2014 (note 36)

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37)

At 31 March 2014

Loss for the period

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations

Surplus on transfer from property,
plant and equipment to investment
properties (note 17)

Other comprehensive income
for the period

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the period

Issue of new shares (note 35)
Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

At 31 December 2014
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R=E-ZEMA-A

REER

REBIRBHEL ELER

FERERLAE

R-2-ZEARZTREHE
ERREERZREER

#

R-F-EAA=TARHS

EOREREEARRER
(His#36)
RZE-RE=A=+-RA%
HRERFEEZRDER
(His#36)
WBE-FHBAR (Ki37)

RZE-ME=A=t-R

THER

AEBIRBHEL ENER
nE BERAEERE

RAnxzER (HE1)

AHEHZAUA

RHRENA (R E8

BIHRA (Wi35)
EFRAEERSRA

R-F-RF+-A=1-A

Share
capital

A
HK$
BT

50,967,728

50,967,728

22,425,000

73,392,728

Share
premium

Ritia®
HKS
BT

210,949,953

210,949,953

48,968,020

(1,944,804)

257,973,169

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Deemed

contribution

Put option froma
reserve  shareholder
DEHE B2
e RRZEM
HKS HKS
AT BT

(53,533,077) 145,419,339

53,533,077 -

(43,537,618) 43,537,618

43,537,618 -

- 188,956,957

- 188,956,957

LTINS

Capital
redemption
reserve
E1EE
i

HKS

T

62,400

62,400

62,400

Properties
valuation
reserve
NEfE
i
HKS

AT

56,223,266

56,223,266

56,223,266

56,223,266

Translation
reserve

El it
HKS
oo

54,752,182

(460,198)

(460,198)

54,291,944

1,720,758

1,720,758

1,720,758

56,012,702

Retained
profits

REEA
HKS
B

385,738,151

(21,015,858)

(21,015,858)

(53,533,077)

(43537,618)

267,651,598

(78,637472)

(78,637472)

Total

Eh
HKS
B

794,356,636

(21,015,858)

(460,198)

(21,476,06)

772,880,580

(78,637472)

1,720,758

56,223,266

57,944,024

(20,693,448)

71,393,020

(1,944,804)

189,014,126 821,635,348

Non-
controlling
interests

FERER
HK$
BT

(195,949)

(733,850)

(196,198)

(930,048)

1,013,685

(112312)

(205,670)

78417

78417

(127,053)

(239,565)

Total
&5t
HKS
BT

794,160,687

(21,749,708)

(656,396)

(22,406,104)

1,013,685

772,768,268

(78,843,142)

1,799,175

56,223,266

58,022,441

(20,820,701)

71,393,020

(1,944,804)

821,395,783



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories and
record masters
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Release of prepaid lease payments
Loss (gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments
Change in fair value of investment
properties
Impairment loss recognised on available-
for-sale investments
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
Share of result of a joint venture
Dividend income
Interest expense
Interest income

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories and
record masters

(Increase) decrease in trade and other
receivables, prepayments and deposits

Increase in properties under development
for sale

Decrease in amount due from a related
company

Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading
investments

Increase in loans receivable

Increase (decrease) in trade and
other payables and accruals

Cash used in operations
Dividend income

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Overseas tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

e
B A 518

B R T2
RO
R R B

ME BEMRRETE

I AERY

BTN ENE

Y% B R R
AR (3s)

HIEEEREZ AT ERD

BAME ATER

RABEERERRZ
BEEE

ME - ME MREER
VERIEY SR

EIE—RAERT 2 ¥4E

NI PN

BB

) BUA

KEEEAS BB
EERG L E

FERIEH B
D (#90)

CEY RV TS
B RIBURET &
(#0) >

HEBRR DR

JE U — 2R BB X B R
iaes
FIFEERER LD (Fm)

& Wi B SR 3% 0
B 5 N A e TR A K
FE AT AR IARIE I O )

reEmBEzHie
B B A
ENEENEHR
2SN IR

REEBREREFHE

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—F-NmE
mA—BZE
—F-mF

t=A=+-—AH

HKS$
BT
(79,577.,470)
1,253,423
2,265,511
19,238,958
564,258
23,685
179,130

(3.882,085)

33,951,547
(454,708)
(500,972)

566,890

(3,981,708)

(30,353,541)

23,870,717

(47,138,533)

1,346,153

15,407,830
(8,915,000)

2,852,319

(42,930,055)
500,972

(582,401)

(489,081)

(43,500,565)

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—EF—=
mA—H=
—E—=F
+=-—A=+—8
HK$
BT

(20,530,576)
281,365
217,929

27,820,744
574,516
716,916

(2,510,682)

5,015,097

6,518,019

23,595
(424,836)

814,015
(4,859,568)

13,656,534

(1,474,905)

8,110,944
(3,516,675)
2,432,005

(29,784,497)

(7,479)

(10,584,073)
424,836
(330,567)
(628,369)

(11,118,173)
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF—_H="+—HINEA

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of an available
-for-sale investment

Loan to an available-for-sale investee

Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Placement of short term bank deposits
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of
cash and cash equivalents acquired)
Investment in a joint venture
Loan to a joint venture
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings

New borrowings raised

Advance from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Issue of new shares

Share issues expenses

Interest paid

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD/YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE PERIOD/YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash
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1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—2-HmF
mA—-BE
—F-mF

+=A=+-RH

HK$
BT

(7,800)

7,500,000

(1,810,489)

(900,338)
(108,955,508)

57,888,781

(1,355,000)
(7,146,589)

58,089
1,868,394

(52,860,460)

(23,180,742)

14,922,130

71,393,020

(1,944,804)
(566,890)

60,622,714

(35,738,311)

127,719,903

788,481

92,770,073

92,770,073

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—FT—=F
MmA—BZE
2=
+—-A=+—H”
HK$

BT

(1,008,019)

(10,754,453)
(152,429,994)
150,851,086

186,746

(8)
(4,000,000)
(11,280,820)

4,538,680
2,041,816

(21,854,966)

(44,349,745)
61,458,670

1,223,776

(814,015)

17,518,686

(15,454,453)
143,667,512

(493,156)

127,719,903

127,719,903
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The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in Corporate Information to the annual
report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 45.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from 31 March to 31
December because the directors of the Company decided
to bring the annual reporting period end date of the Group
in line with that of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
Accordingly, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows and related notes for the current reporting period
cover nine months from 1 April 2014 to 31 December
2014. The corresponding comparative amounts shown
for the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover twelve-month period from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2014 and therefore may not be comparable with amounts
shown for the current reporting period.
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In the current period, the Group has applied the following
new amendments and interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
HKAS 32

Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
HKAS 36

Amendments to Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge
HKAS 39 accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

The application of these HKFRSs in the current period has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current period and prior year and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
Amendments to

HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 27
Amendments to
HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Financial instruments’
Revenue from contracts with customers?
Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and

its associate or joint venture?

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception?

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint
operations®

Disclosure initiative?

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and

amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer plants’

Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions’
Equity method in separate financial statements?
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle’

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle?
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 "“Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, HKFRS 15
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

& Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

* Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

i Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

* Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

id Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company is in the process of assessing the
impact on the application of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until a detailed review is completed.

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
September 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements
for financial assets; b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value
through other comprehensive income’ measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.
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All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

Based on an analysis of the Group's financial instruments as at
31 December 2014, the directors anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
(e.g. the Group's unlisted shares that are currently classified
as available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments, which are measured at cost less impairment at
the end of each reporting period may have to be measured
at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss).
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review is completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period/year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All inter-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group’s share of
losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of investment (include
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group acquires a subsidiary that does not constitute
the acquisition of a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, and the cost of the acquisition is allocated
to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction or event does not give rise to goodwill.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of albums are recognised when the albums are delivered
and the title has passed.

Artistes management fee income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Promotion income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Concerts and shows income is recognised on the completion
of the relevant concerts and shows.
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Income from the licensing of the musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established.

Rental income is recognised, on a straight-line basis, over the
terms of respective leases.

Deposits received from purchases prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the properties
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Record masters represent the accumulated costs incurred
in the production of master tapes of relevant audio-visual
products at the end of the reporting period and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the land
use rights and development cost of the property. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable cost incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.
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Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

ERAEAFHZELEELK
AHERZBLEEEZELEF R
P IR AT BERUE 2 R R B HE 1T R
(VN

A E g AR FE O B K
R)EERBEMEPZEE.
& B ER - THARE B Al
MHEHERFEEEIREERT
AARKRBEERERABN 2BER
B2 AT B R B AR RRR

eREEHHEE-

st EE (RBRSELEM) Z
e eEIRNERmSRE  EE
(HBHEELEN) 2R T B
AR = E R Uy o] 5 58 < BB RS R R
FRBERERRRAX -

R EEIRN LB - AIEZIAE
EZRESHEGENEELER
TR El 5 58 - IR ANTR 2 Bk
EEETSBEORREBEFEL
EHEEE (IR EEEM)
ERAREBEEREEE < RAE
2 o Rl (B B 98 1 () BDV B B 3R 28 WK
Ao

WiE BEREESEREE (A
FERBREET IEREMAR
HIHECEE) EERIEZBEK
K EMARFTEEZKA BEE
ZEEECABEAAERE A
BRHERLE -BEBERFRE
BEREER AT R IRE Tk
RMzREBASERARETERZ
BEREERANPHIE-

Annual Report 2014 F #§



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included
in profit or loss under the finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period/year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax
for such investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will
be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period/year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).
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Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables, investments held for trading and available-
for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Investment held for trading

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Investment held for trading is measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned in the financial assets.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loan to available-for-sale investees,
advances to potential investees, loan to a joint venture trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable, amount
due from a related company, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative is initially recognised at fair value and is
subsequently measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period, when such
derivative is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliable
measured.

EHEERKATA (&)

KATA

BATEIGEREEASEER
BEREMBRERCEET ZH
s ZIERE K c ARRIEITZ
B AR T AR B WA S RIBRR B
BRBEITRAER AR

ERFIFX

ERNEELR B BHEBE
EeRBERERARDENE
X Z2HE-BRENEAN SR
BEZEFERE (HER) &K
HIRE A 5T B R P 3R & R4
BEBRERE ZRmFEZA
Ko M BRI BERN LR

THRE

cRAE (BHERE S LEMEMNK
BN R RIBNEE) RERR
AEBRMNREIZEENAGTE -

TEZHIT A

ITET AR A FERER N
O74 T A B 8% BB H 5™
B  AAFEEEMNSEFEZRA
TE# ARMBBEFEBRINZF
BATAEZER  BIEERSREDR
RIZ KA BAE AR 2 3851 Rk (B 85 18

-

Annual Report 2014 F #§



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited

The settlement of put option which is made by receiving a
fixed amount of cash and delivering a fixed number of the
shares of Neway Entertainment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, is accounted for as an equity instrument. The option
is measured at fair value on initial recognition and debited to
put option reserve.

Where the put option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in put option reserve will be transferred to
the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon the expiration of put option.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$127,986,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$3,450,000) (31.3.2014: carrying
amount of approximately HK$108,328,000, net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately HK$2,201,000).
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Determining whether an impairment is needed requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible
assets, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments or the respective cash generating units ("CGU")
in which intangible or property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments, assets belong, which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount
shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows or the revision of estimated future
cash flows are less than original estimated future cash flow,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments and intangible assets is approximately
HK$166,028,000, HK$32,091,000 and HK$5,318,000
(31.3.2014: HK$226,343,000, HK$32,655,000 and
HK$5,318,000), respectively. Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in notes 44 and 19, respectively.
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value, if any.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the period/year. The useful
lives are based on the Group's historical experience with similar
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimates. During
the period/year, the Group determined that the useful lives
of the property, plant and equipment should be remained
constant to that of prior years. Depreciation expense is
approximately HK$19,239,000 (1.4.2013 to 31.3.2014:
HK$27,821,000) for the nine months ended 31 December
2014.
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Financial assets TEEE
Loans and receivables B3 R RN IE
(including cash and (’F]%iﬁ/i\&
cash equivalents) ReEE)
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Derivative financial instrument PTEERIT A
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B SH PR AR

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—UF —E O
+=—A=+—H —A=+—H
HK$ HK$

BT BT
489,485,825 413,460,056
10,081,840 25,668,800
16,315,359 23,738,802
6,268,198 6,268,198
107,848,542 112,954,981
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The Group’s major financial instruments include loan to
available-for-sale investees and a joint venture, derivative
financial instrument, available-for-sale investments, advances
to potential investees, held-for-trading investments, trade
and other receivables and deposits, loans receivable, amount
due from a related company, short-term bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and accruals,
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk,
currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain
trade receivables, bank balances, short-term bank
deposits, trade payables and borrowings of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), United
States dollars (“USD"), HK$, Japanese Yen (“JPY")
and Euro (“EURQO"), the currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities
as disclosed in notes 27, 30, 31 and 33 respectively.
Approximately 40% (31.3.2014: 30%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity making the
sale, whilst almost 18% (31.3.2014: 20%) of costs are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity’s functional currency.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, directors of the Company
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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Market risk (Continued) TERE (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EXEb (EZ)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REBPUINEAE Z EEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities ENEEaENHREEERZ
at the end of the reporting period are approximately as RS EEMY T
follows:
Assets Liabilities
EE 8

31122014 3132014 31122014 3132014
—E-mE  —F-EF ZB-RE —FT-@EF
+=f=+-A ZA=+-A +zB=t-R =ZA=t+-A

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT
usD % 28,424,000 33,587,000 796,000 3,440,000
HK$ BT 5,694,000 14,228,000 - -
RMB AR - 1,810,000 108,000 108,000
JPY H - - - 358,000
EURO BT 566,000 601,000 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, FR A TR 3R B SE T M
the Group does not expect any significant movements REBFBEET, BT 2E
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. KARe HIBERENEH -
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Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to
a 10% (31.3.2014: 10%) increase and decrease in
functional currency of respective group entity against
relevant foreign currencies (other than USD) and all
other variables were held constant. 10% (31.3.2014:
10%) is the sensitivity rate used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a

TSR (&)

() EEEE (&)
BREDHT (8)
T%ﬁﬂ@‘—WEmﬂ

------ BREIE XEERER
SEERB MR EEKREA
@%M(T@%%nﬁﬂa
NEZ(E10% (ZE—E=
A=+t—HB:10%) 2 &
B FTASURELEA10%
(ZE—mMF=A=+—
B : m%)ﬁ@%@ﬁ%
%%E?ﬂ ﬁﬁzAﬁ

10% (31.3.2014: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss for the period/year where functional E—-E=/8=
currency of respective group entity strengthen 10%
(31.3.2014: 10%) against foreign currencies. For
a 10% (31.3.2014: 10%) weakening of functional
currency of respective group entity against foreign

i IW@K&E

MT
m

10% ) B BB EENEE
A ZIBE S TXEH
B 5 7 1 91 5 I B 2 0
Bt 5 S FHE10% (=

7

currencies, there would be an equal and opposite E—WFE=H=4+—8":

impact on the result for the period/year.

31.12.2014

(Increase) decrease in loss
for the period

31.3.2014
(Increase) decrease in loss
for the year
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Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
primarily relates to variable-rate bank deposits, bank
balances, bank borrowings and bank import loans. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to the fixed-rate loan receivable and
other borrowing and interest-free loans to available-
for-sale investments and a joint venture. The Group
has not used any derivative instruments in order to
mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, the directors
of the Company monitor interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group's exposure
to future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances
as a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances are
not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate bank deposits, bank borrowings and bank import
loans. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole period/year. A 100 basis
point increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.
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Market risk (Continued)

(i1)

(iir)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the period/year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1,215,000 (31.3.2014:
HK$797,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
deposits, bank borrowings and bank import loans.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
held-for-trading investments for the period/year. The
Group's held-for-trading investments have significant
concentration of price risk in Hong Kong stock market.
The directors of the Company manage the exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of equity investments with
different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on held-for-trading investments
during the year have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate considers at 10% in the current period.
If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
period/year would decrease/increase approximately
by HK$1,008,000 (31.3.2014: HK$2,567,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.
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Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to advances
to potential investees, trade and other receivables, loans
receivable, amount due from a related company, loans to an
available-for-sale investee and a joint venture, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances as at 31 December 2014 and 31
March 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on
amount due from a related company as the credit risk
is attributable to a counterparty for the period/year. The
directors of the Company consider the counterparty with good
credit worthiness based on its past repayment history and
subsequent settlement.

The Group also has significant concentration risk on loans
to an available-for-sale investee and a joint venture and
advances to potential investees. The directors of the Company
continuously monitor the credit quality and financial positions
of the counterparties and the level of exposure to ensure
that the follow-up action is taken to recover the debts. Other
than these, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk in receivables as the exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Under such circumstances, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is not material.
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Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the directors of the Company
review the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
financial institutions choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEsEE (&
Liquidity tables TN E T IE N E
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total the end of
effective 1 month to 3monthsto  undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year cash flows period
R E
mETH -8R =f@A RERE REHRZ
YRS RER Z=f@A B-F BF RESE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
31.12.2014 ZE-mE+ZAZT-8
Trade payables BHRATE - - 56,181,011 - 56,181,011 56,181,011
Other payables and accruals Efh AR RIEH B - - 22,272,531 - 22,272,531 22,272,531
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-ZHERR
shareholder of a subsidiary —REERRETE - 18,937,500 - - 18,937,500 18,937,500
Secured bank borrowing BEAROEE Note 1 ffit1 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 6,000,000
Unsecured other borrowings BEREMEE Note 3 Ji#3 4,457,500 - - 4,457,500 4,457,500
29,395,000 78,453,542 - 107,848,542 107,848,542
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total the end of
effective 1 month to 3 months to undiscounted the reporting
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year cash flows period
A8
MEFH —f@A =R Reng REBRRL
BRI REX 2=fEA E-E ek FHEE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B B B B
3132014 ZZ-ME=A=1+-H
Trade payables B SRR - - 50,595,079 - 50,595,079 50,595,079
Other payables and accruals b EMFEREHE - - 24,912,521 - 24,912,521 24,912,521
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-—FHEAR
shareholder of a subsidiary —ZIBRRBRTE x 18,731,269 = = 18,731,269 18,731,269
Secured bank import loans FERBEAADER Note 2 22 3,225,544 - - 3,225,544 3,225,544
Secured bank borrowing BEABIEE Note 1 i1 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 6,000,000
Secured other borrowing BEAEMEE 6.24 9,490,568 - - 9,490,568 9,490,568
37,447,381 75,507,600 - 112,954,981 112,954,981

Annual Report 2014 F #§



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The secured bank borrowing carries at HIBOR plus 1.5% per

annum.

(2) The secured bank imports loans carry at Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus spread, ranging from 1.6% to
2.1% per annum during the year ended 31 March 2014.

(3) The unsecured other borrowings carry interest rates, ranging
from 15% to 30% per annum during the nine months ended
31 December 2014.
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Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables (Continued)

Secured bank borrowings and unsecured other borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause as at 31 December 2014
and secured bank import loans, secured bank borrowing
and secured other borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause as at 31 March 2014 are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. The carrying
amount of the secured bank borrowing and unsecured other
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$6,000,000
(31.3.2014: HK$6,000,000) and HK$4,458,000 (31.3.2014:
Nil) respectively as at 31 December 2014. The carrying
amount of the secured bank import loans and secured other
borrowing amounted to approximately HK$3,226,000 and
HK$9,491,000 respectively as at 31 March 2014. Taking into
account the Group's financial position and assets pledged for
the borrowings, the directors of the Company do not believe
that it is probable that the financial institutions would exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate payment. As
at 31 December 2014, the directors of the Company believed
that such borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
The aggregate principal and interest cash outflows amounted
to HK$11,221,137 (31.3.2014: HK$19,767,770) as at 31
December 2014. The repayment schedule based on the
scheduled repayment dates as per following:
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELEE (&
Liquidity tables (Continued) THBEZFELE (&)
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-OmF —F=F
mA—B=Z mMA—BZ
—Z=—MN0 —E—mOF
F+=-—HA=+—H =HA=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
Within one year —F KN 11,221,137 12,781,552
In the second to fifth year FE_ERF - 6,986,218
11,221,137 19,767,770
This note provides information about how the Group WAt AR E B A B =] X 18
determines fair values of various financial assets. EREENFEZER -
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Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).

Financial assets Fair value as at
SREE RUTBRFZATE
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—F-mF L
+=A=+-H —A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Held-for-trading investments 10,081,840 25,668,800
RHIEEERA 10,081,840 25,668,800

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the
period/year.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services provided by the Group, less returns
and allowances during the period/year.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the chief
operating decision makers expect the Group will allocate more
resources to expand the money lending business and thus the
reportable and operating segment of money lending is newly
presented.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are therefore
as follows:

(a) Manufacturing and sales of printing products
("Manufacturing and Sales”);

(b) Trading of printing products (“Trading”);
(c) Artistes management, production and distribution of

music albums and movies (“Music and entertainment”);

(d) Property development and investment (“Property
business”), including properties development projects
and properties investments in the PRC and mini storage
business in Hong Kong;

(e) Securities trading (”Securities trading”); and

(f) Money lending (“Lending business”).
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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The following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segment.

AEEREERAIREDHS

P2

2 M EE DT

Revenue Segment (loss) profit
I3 28 (BR) &7
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to0 1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014 31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-mE =% —E-MmF —F-=F
NA—-HZE mA—HZ NA—HZE MmA—HZ
—E-QNE “E-NF —E-QmE “E-NF
t-A=+-B =A=t—-H +=B=t-B =A=+-8
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales BERHE 366,794,179 571,487,872 (73,340,317) 1,195,301
Trading 25 27,074,028 29,233,588 1,250,773 1,584,409
Music and entertainment BERIRY 25,332,180 12,547,845 (2,272,985) 88,617
Property business NEXH 7,655 - 2,765,524 577,772
Securities trading EHEE - - 2,103,290 (2,431,714)
Lending business MEXH 305,569 - (549,941) -
Total Bt 419,513,611 613,269,305 (70,043,656) 1,014,385
Interest income FIEWA 1,868,394 2,041,816
Unallocated corporate expenses AOEGELH (11,960,448)  (16,780,560)
Unallocated net foreign exchange difference R EINEZBFERE
and other income LN 103,532 (264,603)
Impairment loss recognised on available-for- ~ F [ HE K E
sale investments BRAZRBESE - (6,518,019)
Share of result of a joint venture EE—RALARZER 454,708 (23,595)
Loss before taxation B ATER (79,577,470)  (20,530,576)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the loss
incurred/profit earned by each segment without allocation of
interest income, certain net foreign exchange difference and
other income, unallocated corporate expenses, impairment
loss recognised on available-for-sale investments and share of
result of a joint venture. This is the measure reported to the
Group’s management for the purpose of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by operating and reportable segment:

Manufacturing
and Sales Trading
BERHE g5
HKS HKS
BT BT
As at 31 December 2014 ~ R=F-N%&
+=p=1-8
Segment assets NRAE 330,079,021 15,047,018
Other assets ez
Consolidated assets GREE
Segment liabilities PHEEE 81,613,388 3,750,686
Other liabilities e
Consolidated liabilities GREE
Manufacturing
and Sales
BEREE
HK$
B
As at 31 March 2014 RZE-MEF
ZA=1-~H
Segment assets PREE 460,669,198
Other assets EEE
Consolidated assets GRAE
Segment liabilities PEER 93,115,757
Other liabilities LBE
Consolidated liabilities GRAaE
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Music and
entertainment
ERRIRE
HKS

BT

25,082,036

4,394,096

Trading
HK$
B

14,462,325

4,319,410

REER

e y=|
ZEERBBEIIWT
Property Securities Lending
business trading business
NEXH BHEE REEK
HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B
188,567,311 29,187,240 10,026,958
21,495,821 629,896 4,752,269
Music and Property Securities
entertainment business trading
EES S nEEH EXEE
HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT
17,603,098 100,380,612 25,668,800
5,958,791 18,910,468 30,000

430 L

KAl & D RE D

Consolidated
ma
HKS
BT

597,989,584
342,571,323

940,560,907

116,636,156
2,528,968

119,165,124

Consolidated
&a

HK$
B

618,784,033
279,144,280

897,928,313

122,334,426
2,825,619

125,160,045
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For the purposes of monitoring segments performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than interests in a joint venture, loan to
a joint venture, certain available-for-sale investments,
advances to potential investees, certain other
receivables, short term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents.

MRERDBERENMR D

BRI R

BRMmE :

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain other payables and
accruals.

Manufacturing Music and
and Sales Trading  entertainment
HEREE g5  E4RB4

HK$ HK$ HKS
B B B

For the nine months ended
31 December 2014

Amounts included in the measure of
segment results or segment assets

Interest income (exclusion of interest
income from money lending
business)

Interest expenses

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Write down of inventories and
record masters

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts,
net

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Additions to property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment

Change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments

HE-T-ME+=A=+-8
LLAEA

SEARRARD RAER
FAZEE:

HMERA (TEEREREER
ZHEHA)

HMERX
BRAERARE

% BERRENE
HEFSREREE
REERETE

HENE BRERREZIER
n% BEREERE

ﬁm% BE RRERRL

HIEEERAZOVERD

566,89(-)
564,258
18,439,246
2,265,511
1,253,423
23,685

14,278,431

33,951,547

68,495 96,549

145,917 -

. BRR—KEERRIZ R
BT —REERAIZER
ETAHEERE . % &
ERRER BN & H
fth FEULTRIE - 52 H ﬁ?ﬁm
NEBRE RReEEN R
BEEGHEERLE NAH
HEoe
. %” FAth A~ FRIE S FE AT
E%’%EEFA“EE
ﬁ%&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@°
Property Securities Lending Segment
business trading business total  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEXH RFEE REXH SEBH AR A
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
(2,113,314) - - (2,113,314) (1,868,394) (3,981,708)
- - - 566,890 - 566,890
- - - 564,258 - 564,258
3241 - 10,266 18,617,797 621,161 19,238,958
- - - 2,265,511 - 2,265,511
- - - 1,253,423 - 1,253,243
- - - 23,685 - 23,685
- - 250,084 14,674,432 3,070,826 17,745,258
- - - 33,951,547 - 33,951,547
- (2,456,740) - (2,456,740) - (2,456,740)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R
For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
HE—ZF—WE+_—HA=+—Hi1EAH

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIEEHR (&)
(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) BEioEER (&)
Manufacturing Music and Property Securities Segment
and Sales Trading ~ entertainment business trading total  Unallocated  Consolidated
HERHE g5  BHRRY NEER #5EE AEE L) &4
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
o o o v En o oo o
For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-3-MF=A=T-ALEE
Amounts included in the measure of HEABEEYNREER
segment results or segment assets; HALEE:
Interest income (exclusion of interest HERA (FRERENEEKL
income from money lending business) FSHA) - - - (2,817,752 - (2,817,752 (2,041,816) (4,859,568)
Interest expenses i 814,015 - - - - 814,015 - 814,015
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BHREHAEE 716916 - - - - 716916 - 716916
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% R ERE 26,597,071 93,644 123,639 8,955 - 26,823,309 997,435 27,820,744
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEERE - - 574516 - - 574516 - 574516
114 Wite down of inventories and record masters iz & B &5 - - 217929 - - 217929 - 217929
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net ~ REEE EF5E U315 - 39,050 - - 281,365 - 281,365
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LENE HERRE NG
equipment (2,510,682) - - - - (2,510,682) - (2,510,682)
Additions to property, plant and equipment 415 BE RAERE 10,629,876 304,703 - - - 10,934,579 346,241 11,280,820
Change in fair value of held-for-rading FEEEREIATERD
investments - - - - 2,042,535 2,042,535 - 2,042,535

— e Neway Group Holdings Limited P EXEZRER D 7
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BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

ATBAREREEETEEMK

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

major products and services: R 2 Wz #r:
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-mEF —E—=F
A—R=% WMA—HB=E
—E—NF —E—mF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing products Nl 2 & 393,868,207 600,721,460
Sales of albums HEBH 1,305,491 1,356,352
Artistes management fee income BABEEWA 1,828,078 3,236,238
Concerts and shows income SEIEE K FROBERA 17,913,092 1,404,994
Promotion income FEKA 133,000 4,003,600

Income from the licensing of FRERFFIRA

the musical works 3,709,311 2,534,504

Other music and entertainment services EL{th 5 % [ 48 24 iR 1% 443,208 12,157

Loan interest income from REMEEBKZ
money lending business BERAE WA 305,569 -
Rental income from KREKMRBEERZ
mini storage business el A 7,655 -
419,513,611 613,269,305

REER B BE M HHE BRI E m
EBZWANBRREBEB R E - Ef
EmBEE TENREXBLES

The Group's income from manufacturing and sales of printing
product operation is derived from Hong Kong and the PRC.
The trading of printing product, music and entertainment

business and securities trading are mainly carried out in Hong BEEFERNBBRE - MEZXBFR
Kong. The property business are carried out in the Hong Kong EBERPRLE - MEEBRES
and PRC. The money lending business are carried out in Hong o

Kong.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the

customers and assets respectively are detailed below:

Hong Kong
The PRC
Europe
United States
Others

EiE
i
B
*
Hfh

AEBRBINBEP 2 W B
BAERBEECERDRRER
REEMEEFIMT

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENMPEE 2 i FRBEE
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014 31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-|mE —E-=F
MA—-HZ MA—RZ
= L - = L
+ZB=+-B ZA=ft-HB +=ZA=+-H =ZA=t+-H
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BT BT o
186,367,106 283,614,535 95,746,621 33,814,123
135,165,709 189,879,897 211,882,547 258,672,884
49,380,268 57,805,909 = -
28,616,087 61,602,373 = -
19,984,441 20,366,591 = -
419,513,611 613,269,305 307,629,168 292,487,007

Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments,

loan to an available-for-sale investees, derivative financial

instrument, loan to a joint venture and advances to potential

investees.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Revenue from a customer of the corresponding period/year
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group, deriving
revenue from the Group's reportable and operating segments
are as follows:

Customer A’ BPA
1 Customer A operates in the toy industry in the PRC.
2 This corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of

the total revenue of the Group.

RIBEME, FEXRE —R2EP
MAKERHERBEBI0% 2K
@ (BRREER B AR B AT HRE &k

gaE BT

=

2

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—E-mE
BA—HBHZE
—B-mE
B=+-8

HKS

P
43,942,722

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—E—=F
WMA—B=Z=
—E—OF
=A=+—H
HK$

BT

N/A N3 F3?

EPARPEE LI AT -
UEREIE oz A A A AR 2

i#10% °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—-NF —E—=%
A—RH=ZE mMAE—H=E
—E—MF —Z—mF
+=-—RA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Net foreign exchange (losses) gain SN (18 Was F 8 (962,680) 231,658
Fair value changes in investment BEYWEZ RN TFEES
properties 3,882,085 -
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, LEWE BEREREZ
plant and equipment (E8E) K= (23,685) 2,510,682
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts S IZ IR B 5 (1,253,423) (281,365)
Impairment loss recognised MAHHERERR L
on available-for-sale investments WEEE - (6,518,019)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of SL41% - BE & &
property, plant and equipment W2 REEE (33,951,547) -
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #H1EEEHRE R FEEE
investments 2,456,740 (2,042,535)
(29,852,510) (6,099,579)
Note: B iz
Net realised gain of HK$2,635,870 (1.4.2013 to 31.3.2014: net HERFEEREZEER KN FH
realised gain of HK$2,972,562) on disposal of investments held for 2,635,870 T (ZE—=FWA—HBHEZ=
trading is included in change in fair value of investments held for T-MF=A=+—H:BE2RKIFHE
trading. 2,972,562 ) BRF AR EEBERE AT
EE & -
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-IF —F=F
A—B=Z MA—H=E
—E-mF —Z—mF
+=—HA=+—H =A=+—H
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: TIER ZFE
Bank borrowings and bank AR —FRNEBHEERZ
import loans wholly repayable RITEE RIRIT
within one year ABEK 227,982 634,591
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARMTERNBHREEZ
within two years HMEE 338,908 179,424
566,890 814,015
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine
(31.3.2014: ten) directors were as follows:

UWTAEMSEMNFIR(ZZ
—FE=A=+—H:108%)&E=%

AN .
2
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
HITES FHTES HEE
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAU
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai TSE Kwok LUI Lai Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai Wan  Ping, Cecily Cheong Total
EER HEE Rin EEiE RER #xE 3HE BEW EEL a3t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
v v v o AT A B BT B B
(Note j)
(#ti)
1.4.2014 t0 31.12.2014 “E-MEMA-AZ
ZE-RETZAZY-8
Fees we - - 106,312 63,750 63,750 63,750 63,750 63,750 - 425,062
Other emoluments Eh e
- Salaries and other benefits ~HeREMER 1,585,000 945,000 - - - - - - 329,000 2,859,000
~ Contributions to retiement benefits ~ —E{REFI3F &R
schemes 13,000 13,000 - - - - - - 13,000 39,000
Total emoluments 1,598,000 958,000 106,312 63,750 63,750 63,750 63,750 63,750 342,000 3,323,062
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
#ES FHTES HifEE
SUEK SUEK CHAN LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai TSE CHENG LEE LUl Lai Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai Chi Wai Kwok ~ Ping, Cecily Cheong Total
EZB BEE Ry EHE REH HRF g%k Wan RE® EEE @i
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS ZHZ HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT B B AT oo B oy A
(Note j) (Note i)
(Hieti) (H32i)
14.20131031.3.2014 “R-ZEMA-HE
Fees - - 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 45,889 70,000 70,000 - 521,889
Other emoluments
- Salaries and other benefits 2,160,000 1,260,000 - - - - - - - 403,283 3,823,283
- Contributions to retirement 3
benefits schemes 15,000 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000 45,000
Total emoluments kX 2175000 1,275,000 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 45,889 70,000 70,000 418283 4390172
Notes: Hiaz
(i) Mr. Suek Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the (i) EBELENABRNAT ZITERE

Company and his remuneration disclosed above included

those for services rendered by him as chief executive.

(ii) Mr. Cheng Chi Wai is resigned on 26 November 2013.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments during

the period/year.

FOEREXHEECHEeEBEE
S RITRBHMRERREZME -

(if) BERELEER-ZT—=F+—A

ZHRBEBHE-
REBHRE FE BEARRE
EMEEAME -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (31.3.2014: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits HekEMmEF
Contributions to retirement RAREFFT B 51

benefits schemes

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 T E
2,000,000/% 7T

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the period/year.

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

EXREBERLEERFALR M
FZ(ZE—OF=A=1+—H:W
BIRBRAES REME 25
BEEHN X - AT 2 Bi& a0
T

1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-MF =%
mA—HB=Z= MA—AZ
—Z2-—mF —T-mF
+=-—A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BTT
2,640,700 2,972,000
95,535 99,050
2,736,235 3,071,050
KEZMEHBENT
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—2-mEF ==
mA—B=Z MA—AZE
—E-MF —ZE—-mF
+=—RA=+—H =A=+—H
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAE BE AR
1 2
2 1
3 3

RERERE, FE - REEHER
ARRMEEFHAERSHFALX
MEMBE - FRIMAREE R
BRZBRHKREBML ZMHIE-



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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The taxation comprises: HIEBIE:

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMEH

Charge for the period/year RE/FEH
Overprovision in prior years BT EBEEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Bl RIS
PRC Withholding tax FR R TE AR

Deferred tax credit for the period/year ZKE /FiEEFREK R
(note 34) (Ff5E34)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the period/year.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—E—NF
mA—HZE
—E-NF

+=A=+-—~H

HKS$
BT

432,280

(87,713)

344,567
576,105

(1,655,000)

(734,328)

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—E—=F
WMA—B=
—E
—A=+—H
HK$

BT

1,805,884

1,805,884
341,955
286,414

(1,215,121)

1,219,132

BEMNSHIRES,FR2ME

BiE(PEARLMBESEMSG
FoEY ([ KCEAMBHE 1)K
(CREMESTEEMIEH)  PEH
B AR ZHER25% °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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H/FABREARN RS BRI
i 22 TE YA ¥R 3R PR B A5 A ES 18

The taxation for the period/year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows: HIRWNT:
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-mF —E—=%
A—HZE MA—B=E
=EF-mE —FnmF
+=A=+—-~H =A=+t—H
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before taxation B A E 18 (79,577,470) (20,530,576)
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LRSI E16.5%F &
(31.3.2014: 16.5%) ZHIE(ZF—F
—A=+—H8: 165%) (13,130,283) (3,387,545)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible — NAT OB ST 2 B 75 52 28
for tax purposes 7,110,956 2,029,756
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBINA 2 BT &
for tax purposes (1,392,126) (1,326,897)
Tax effect of the tax losses RERRBIBEEBE 2
not recognised ik 7,441,106 5,113,018
Overprovision in respect of prior years B 1E 4 /Z R B (87,713) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously B AR A RIS BE
not recognised (797,116) (926,679)
Effect of different tax rates of NEMAERERLE 2
subsidiaries operating MEARTRABEZ
in other jurisdictions 2 195,875 -
Tax effect of share of result of DME—REERNAEE L
a joint venture Mg (75,027) 3,893
Withholding tax levied on HEENARIBRKRE
intragroup dividends Bz FEIOR - (286,414)
Taxation for the period/year 8, FRNFEIA (734,328) 1,219,132
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Loss for the period/year has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories and record masters
recognised as an expense

Write-down of inventories and record
masters (included in cost of sales)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Rental payments in respect of premises
under operating leases

Staff costs including directors’
emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits

— Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes

Total staff costs

Dividend income (included in
other income)

Bank and other interest income
(included in interest income)

Effective interest income on loan to
an available-for-sale investee
(included in interest income)

SHTEAHFERE
Bk (FTA)

AR
BRETE &
RRARL 2 FER
I8 B AR
WA BB A 7
EONTES
RN

TBNEERIEE

REL2HERYE
XftzEz

BREEMEZEIXA

—#HE IER
H {18 7
— RN AR B R

BMEIRAE
BB A (FFAEARIA)

RITREAH B WA
(FEAFIEHA)

KEHT - RAHEER
BREHT ZERZER
FEWA (FTAFIE
YA

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—E—NF
mA—HZE
—E-NF

+=A=+-—~H

HKS$
BT

1,800,000

369,016,777

2,265,511

19,238,958
564,258

11,134,358

135,946,076

2,028,659

137,974,735

(500,972)

(1,868,394)

(2,113,314)

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—E—=F
WMA—B=
—E—mF
=A=t—H
HK$

BT

574,516
1,800,000

485,577,950

217,929

27,820,744
716,916

13,237,821

171,141,863

2,225,492

173,367,355

(424,836)

(2,041,816)

(2,817,752)
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WF+—A=+—HI/LEAA

No dividend was paid or proposed for the nine months ended
31 December 2014 and the year ended 31 March 2014, nor
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company for the period/year is based on the
following data:

Loss for the purposes of FTEERAREE
basic loss per share 18

Number of shares Ligvg 4=
Number of shares in issue for FESREREIE
the purposes of basic loss per share EEITIRE

No separate diluted loss per share information has been
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for the period/year.

The number of shares for the calculation of basic loss per share
for the year ended 31 March 2014 have been adjusted to
reflect the impact of share consolidation completed on 5 April
2013.
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BE_ZT-MNHEF+_-_A=1+—
HIEhBEAR=ZZT—HF=A
=T HLEFEARATEIKMKE
BIRBETAIRLE - B|EHRAR
TR 2 R R AT AIRR

AE/FRRRERANRETK
ERERZATBEE

1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-NF —E—=%F
MA—RBZE MA—B=E
—E—NF —E—mF
+=BA=+-—H —A=+—8H
HK$ HK$

BT BT
(78,637,472) (21,015,858)
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—Z—F —E—=%F
mAE—HZE MA—B=E
—E—NF —ZE—F
H=H=:—8 =A=+—8H
HK$ HK$

BT BT
1,189,265,105 1,019,354,560

RN ABEE, FEAILEEITESI
ZBEEBR MY BB 2R
BEEEER-

AEARE—_T-HNF=A=t—H1Lt
FEBRENEEMERZBRBDIE
B ARMR_-_ZE—=FMARLH
TRZBENEH T E-

s



CosT

At 1 April 2013
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary

Disposals

At 31 March 2014

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Disposals

Transfer to investment properties

At 31 December 2014

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2013

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 March 2014

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the period
Eliminated on disposals
Impairment loss recognised
Transfer to investment properties

At 31 December 2014

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2014

At 31 March 2014

AR
W-E-=FMA-A
EHA%

HE

PR — R B2 FB S
e

ET

R-E-WME=ZA=1-H

BRERANE
RZF-RE+-A=+—-A

FERAE
RZE-=MA-A
EX A%
RERE
R

RZE-ME=A=+-H4
EXA%

KR

R
DERRERE
BRERENE

RZE-ME+=A=1—-H

REE
RZZ-ME+-A=1-R

RZE-ME=A=+-AH

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Construction
in progress

EEIR

HK$
T

13,353,524
(13,984)
3,211,628

16,551,168
21,490
751,215

17,323,873

17,323,873

16,551,168

Leasehold
land and
buildings
HELH

REF
HKS
BT

184,234,633
(78,392)

184,156,241
180,328

(31,951,037)

152,385,532

49,215,443
(56,219)
5,045,112

54,204,336
44,208
3,104,285

(10,610,679)

46,742,150

105,643,382

129,951,905

Leasehold
improvements
BE
VES5
HKS

B

64,580,098
(28,053)
614,027

65,166,072
182,985
3,180,433

(5,766,843)

62,762,647

44,382,900
(21,435)
5,057,290

49,418,755
106,794
3,609,250

4,335,248
(1,959,817)

55,510,230

7,252,417

15,747,317

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
BR-%ER
BAERE
HKS

BT

45,877,341
(35,774)
2,563,391
23470
(3,076,524)

45,351,904
52,014
1,277,168
(86,382)

46,594,704

40,127,651
(28,087)
2,224,074
(3,076,185)

39,247,453
39,006
1,517,090
(38,555)
3,866,796

44,631,790

1,962,9

4

6,104,451

Machinery
and
equipment

BERRE
HK$
BT

499,063,728
(80,396)
4,576,851

(38,174,081)

465,386,102
129,930
12,536,442
(200,099)

477,852,375

432,034,891
(71,291)
14,409,533
(37,110,256)

409,262,877
19,363
10,356,584
(166,152)
25,749,503

445,222,175

32,630,200

56,123,225

Motor
vehicles Total
RE @t
HKS HKS
BT BT
14,303,652 821,412,976
(4,024) (240,623)
314,923 11,280,820
- 23,470
(2,523,730) (43,774,335)
12,090,821 788,702,308
2,505 569,252
- 17,745,258
- (286,481)
- (37,717,880)
12,093,326 769,012,457
10,704,047 576,464,932
(3,097) (180,129)
1,084,735 27,820,744
(1,559,896) (41,746,337)
10,225,789 562,359,210
1,037 210,408
651,749 19,238,958
- (204,707)
- 33,951,547
- (12,570,496)
10,878,575 602,984,920
1,214,751 166,027,537
1,865,032 226,343,098

Annual Report 2014 F #§



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease
terms or 30 — 50 years

Leasehold improvements 12.5% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 10% - 25%

equipment
Machinery and equipment 10% - 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

The carrying values of leasehold
land and buildings shown above
comprise:

Leasehold land and buildings
in Hong Kong under
medium-term leases

Buildings in the PRC under
medium-term leases

FREE T REF
FREEBRE:

R & I LA BT 4
FREZHET W RIEZ
x=

37 77 A B 3 DA R B AR 49
RBZET

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$12,441,302 (31.3.2014: HK$28,183,580) have
been pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

Annual Report 2014

bt BERREEE (ERT
BB 2 EDRANTFERE
CESSIEE

HETHREF RALHHRKI0E50F
(UG EBE)

HMEWMEEE  125%-20%

Bi-RER 10% - 25%

PRERE
W R EE 10% - 25%
RE 25%

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-F —E—mF
+=BA=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
12,441,302 28,183,580
93,202,080 101,768,325
105,643,382 129,951,905

REEAS 1243028 T2 WE -HEM
HB(ZZE—ME=A=+—H 28,183,580
B BERTIRT EARNEEER Y —%
RITEE 2K



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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As at 31 March 2014, property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$8,587,150 had been pledged
to a financial institution for secured other borrowing.

Due to the Group’s recurring loss resulted in manufacturing
and sale of printing products segment, the directors of the
Company conducted an impairment assessment of the Group’s
buildings in the PRC amounting to HK$93,202,080 and
prepaid lease payments of HK$2,719,855 as at 31 December
2014 which are allocated to manufacturing and sale of
printing products segment.

Details of impairment assessment on property, plant and

equipment based on value in use calculation are disclosed in
note 44.

The Group's prepaid lease AEEZENEE
payments comprise: IR

Medium-term leasehold land

in the PRC RAZHEE L
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREAMTAT -
Non-current asset FEMENE E
Current asset mENEE

The carrying amount of the leasehold land is charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the leases.

{2 7 B 3 LA R EA AR 49

RZZBE-—MF=R=+—H KEE
58,587,150/ T2 W% - Wi K&k
BOERT XU BEE FREM
EEZHEM-

MRAEE 2 N ERREREED
FHBRELPEEEE ARRESER
—E-MFE+ A=+ —HBHYAEE
7 A P BB {E93,202,0808 7L 2 18 F
12,719,8558 L 2 FEMHEEFKIAE (W
EONEEEERERRSEMIHENE
TR E RS -

RIFEREEFEZDE BERE
BRER S IR M FE44 I -

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—ZE-mF —ZT-F
+=BA=+—8H =A=+—8H
HK$ HK$

BT BT
32,090,719 32,654,977
31,372,648 31,938,061
718,071 716,916
32,090,719 32,654,977

METits BASEHRERE
ERFBBOMN G GEAERR
H b 2 EMARERING -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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HK$
BT
At 1 April 2013 and 31 March 2014 RZ-Z—=FWA—AK
—E-mMFE=ZA=+—H -
Transfer from property, EREME BEREB
plant and equipment 25,147,384
Fair value change recognised to other  RERE#iE RN EMEEBARERZ
comprehensive income NEEED)
upon change of intended use 56,223,266
Fair value changes recognised to RIBRERZ N EEE)
profit or loss 3,882,085
Exchange adjustment ME W & 12,452
At 31 December 2014 R_TE—WFE+_A=+—H 85,265,187
Unrealised gain on property BERBEZE_ZT—NOF+=-A=+—H
revaluation included in profit or loss IENER Z B AR RER Y E K&
for the nine months period ended (FTAE MU= REE)
31 December 2014 (included in
other gains and losses) 3,882,085
During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, the use of REZE-_ZE—NE+_A=+—H
certain premises of the Group has been changed from owner- IFNWER AEBETYHEZRED
occupation to leasing out for rental income. The buildings mMETFTOANEALAUREES
with carrying amount of HK$25,147,384 are transferred from WA - BREI £ %825,147,384 BT 2 18
property, plant and equipment to investment properties at FEREFEAHEREBRHD
the date of the end of owner-occupation. Upon the change ¥ HMENRBERESINEYE-
of intended use, the difference between the carrying amount RN EBmTERER EF7ERE
and the fair value of the buildings of HK$56,223,266 is N~ 1B 2 ffH) &= 5856,223,266
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in BULEREMETEWAPIER
“properties valuation reserve”. WA [ EGEERE] NEGT-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF—_H="+—HINEA

The fair value of investment properties have been arrived at on
the basis of valuations carried out by Citiland Surveyors Limited
for properties located in Hong Kong as at date of transfer and
at 31 December 2014 and It R AR EEE AR AR and 1t
R RS FER B R QR for properties located in the
PRC at 31 December 2014 and date of transfer, respectively.
They are independent qualified professional valuers not related
to the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the direct comparison
approach assuming sale of each of these properties in
existing state and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market and adjusted
for differences in the nature and location.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.
At the end of the reporting period, the chief financial officer
works closely with the qualified external valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs into the model.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
management of the Group.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
period.

REWME 2 RFEDREBERKRE
REMTAERARNREZEEHL
—E-ME+-A=1t—Hz
REBZWMFRET 2EE ARIE
RAREEMGBRAR MR
FRESFMENGEBRARD
IR —F—ME+—-_A=1t—H
MREZEEHRUNFTERZYFRE
TZfAEER - Ll AR RE
BEBEXMGERM EAKEHRE
[BAE -

ATETREB LA B
BREBNERERLE ¥ES
= ARRIT 45 £ 719 2 71 At 3
EXFUARRMERGEZRN
TEES

REFRENEZATFER A
EYEzsREARERENRE
BRI - NMEHR MHARE
BN A ERGEMERS
EE AR BOHERMEEAE
ZHE - WEEN A FELRER
2E) BRaAKEEEEERND
FY R o

B BEE = ARREARE L -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in TRINTEEREME R FEM
the determination of fair values for investment properties and FREERMTEHERRXFETE
unobservable inputs used in the valuation models. 2] B R g A B iE o
Fair value Valuation Range of Relationship of
Description Fair value hierarchy techniques Unobservable inputs significant inputs  inputs to fair value
EH AVE ATEEHR  HEHH TUERAAHE EXBAMEEE BABBEATEZBR
HKS
BT
As at 31 December 2014
R-B-m%F
t-A=+-8
Properties in Hong Kong 74,100,000 Level 3 Direct comparison (i) Based on market HK$1,941 to The higher the market price,
approach observable transactions  HK$4,116 per the higher the fair value.
of comparable square feet
properties
REEZWE 74,100,000 Z=#R7 ERLEA () RETEENEZTE  BTARIUELE TEAS ATEAS-
TEERS 41687
(ii) level adjustment 0% to 3% The lower the level
adjustment/location
adjustment the higher the
fair value.
(i) EEHE 0%Z3% BEBE/MESEDE A
TEAR-
(iii) location adjustment 0% to 10%
(iii) fIEHE 0%Z10%
Properties in the PRC 11,165,187  Level 3 Direct comparison (i) Based on market RMB50,000 to The higher the market price,
approach observable transactions  RMB53,730 per the higher the fair value.
of comparable square meter
properties
RAEZ9% 11,165,187  E=H& 7 ERLEA () BETLENEZHS BEHRARE mEAs ATERR.
I8ERS 50,000t Z AR
53,7307C
(ii) level adjustment 0% to 1% The lower the level
adjustment,
the higher the fair value.
(i) BERE 0%Z1% BERERE ATEAR-

85,265,187
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

The Group's investment property is held under medium-term
leases in Hong Kong and the PRC. All of the Group’s property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$74,100,000 have been pledged to banks to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The deposits were paid for land use rights situated in the PRC
to the PRC local government. The completion of the purchases
is pending for receiving the land use right certificates. As
such, the amounts paid for the land use rights are recorded as
deposits at the end of the reporting period.

AEERBERTEZRENE
TyAR B AI A - REBEFLEREX
M HENREMREREEEHELD
RBZMBEMEREIERRF
BEENGE UNBRIERKREY
EPN-

BEEE & 74,100,000/ 7T 2 3%
EMECERTIRIT tEALEE
R —RIBITEEZER.

Rl OB R Bl b A4
7] R B 3 05 IR S A o B R U R
AR LMEREERND &S
Bo Bt ME|EHR 5L
EREN ZRIBE ARSI AR

T e
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WFE+—A=+—HI/LEAA

COST

At 1 April 2013,
31 March 2014 and
31 December 2014

AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2013
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2014 and
31 December 2014

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2014

At 31 March 2014

5%

RZE—=FmWA—AH"
ZE-MFE=A=+—H8K
—E-W&E+-_A=+—H

By
R-ZE—=FWHA—H
FRLZH

R-ZZE—NMF=A=+—HBK
—ZE—QmE+-A=+—H

AREE
R-ZE—HWF+-HA=+—~H

Artiste contracts, which have definite useful lives, are
amortised over the contract term (4 years) on a straight-line

basis.

Annual Report 2014 F

Artiste
contracts

ZABH

HK$

BT

9,192,248

8,617,732
574,516

9,192,248

Trademark
[Ek:
HK$
BT

5,317,632

5,317,632

5,317,632

Total
et
HK$
BT

14,509,880

8,617,732
574,516

9,192,248

5,317,632

5,317,632

BAGHEAARAIERESR LB
BORREBHFH (4% ) HiH-



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF_H="+—HINEA

The trademark is considered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports
that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the trademarked products or services are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. The trademark will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets have
been allocated to the CGUs of music and entertainment
business. The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, which
approximates to fair value less costs to sell. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-years period and
discount rate of 17.46% (31.3.2014: 17.46%). The cash
flows beyond the 5-years period are extrapolated having a
steady 2% (31.3.2014: 2%) growth rate. The growth rate is
based on the budgeted growth rate, which is determined by
management'’s expectations for the market development, and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Other key assumption of the value in use
calculation is based on the budgeted cash inflow/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin on respective
products and services from the CGU, such estimations are
based on the past performance. No impairment on intangible
assets was noted for both years and management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of the assumption
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

ARESEEAERPEMRES
MAFRE WAEEERERAERD
EEEERAFEAFH AEEE
BEDEITZENE BEERLE
mBEAMIE  miE  RERIRIRS
DM mEEREE  BEMRX
BEENTEEEEE MR ARE A
AALSEEEFRESATEALE
AIERER EESIT2EE &
EHUFRTHECRAEREA
oA HREEEFRRERR
A~ 0] RE IR R B R AT R E R

A ©

RREANRAME BEFEEES
MEZHNIRBEERIRCEES
f-ZEReELEMZAKEIE
BIRFEREEFEHE (BATFE
BSHENANEE)EE Zit&E A
FEFERAABELERER AR
FHYKBEEARSH ZRERE
FE8 0 LA R217.46% (—ZF— P4
=A=+—H:1746% )2 &
Ko AFHINZ RS R ERIE A
2% (ZE—NF=ZA=+—H:
2% ) ZIBFHREREE - LR
RNREBEYMISER ZEH
MEE B MBBEEITEEER
R RER - (FREERNELECH
tEZEREZEUARESEARETE
BEAER EhRENBERRA
EREE s ReELEENSEE
mERETEEHEEREFN X
ZRMEFERERERLEERR
HRE EREREEANRE
ERAIREEBE B TS ERIR
CEABEMNZRAAEBBIRG
EEBEMAzA KBRS -
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-MF —ZT—-mF
+=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Available-for-sale investments comprise: ] fft £ & % & 6 4%
Unlisted equity securities incorporated A A% RBIFEMA L 2
in Republic of Korea (note i) EEMRAES
(Bfeti) - 7,500,000
Unlisted equity securities established ~— MBI 2 3E LT
in the PRC (note i) PRATE 5 (1 atii) 16,307,559 16,238,802
Unlisted equity securities established PGS 2 3F £ h
in overseas N E 7,800 -
16,315,359 23,738,802
The above unlisted equity investments are measured at cost HRAFEZEEETSHEAR
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the X UWBARRESTRAE LR
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that S EATE W EMIFELETR
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair RIGE R RS HARIZRA (FOBRIR
values cannot be measured reliably. B)tE-
Notes: Hat -
On 9 May 2014, Brilliant Wise International Limited ("Brilliant i RZE-—WFRANLB XA
Wise"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered 7% & Mt & 2 AlBrilliant Wise
into the sale and purchase agreement with an independent International Limited ([Brilliant
third party to dispose of the Group's equity interest in this Wise | ) Bl — 2B E=FF LB
entity at a cash consideration of HK$7,500,000. On 7 October B WHEAEBRZER
2014, the Group completed the disposal of the Group's & A7 %% - 31 & X & /7,500,000
interest in unlisted equity securities incorporated in Republic BIL-RZT—WFE+AEH K
of Korea at a cash consideration of HK$7,500,000. There is no &£ E AR € R E7,500,0007%8 7T 58
gain or loss resulting from the disposal. RS AR B R KRR B MK

ZILEMIRAE S o HES
AW AL RS-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Notes. (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group signed a
capital injection agreement with shareholders of PY)|| %
EHEBR AR ("EERME"), which are all independent
third parties, to inject RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,502,000) in HZEFHIE, representing
approximately 16.67% equity interest of the enlarged paid-in
capital of HEREME. REFME is principally engaged
in the property development in the PRC. The above unlisted
equity investments are measured at cost less impairment at the
end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably, after taken into consideration of (i) discount

on lack of control; and (i) discount on lack of marketability.

On the same date of the capital injection agreement by the
Group, the Group signed a loan agreement with HZEFE i
EE that the Group granted an unsecured interest-free loan of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$37,504,000) (“Ying Wah

Shareholder’s Loan") to HZEFHIEE, repayable within three
years from loan advance date.

Hret - (48

ALEFE - AS@EEM)|RER
HWEBRAR ((REFMHE])
ZRE(HBBLE=FH)FA]
FTEBRHE RMREFHEITE
AR #10,000,0007T (HHE R4
12,502,000/ L) * HHE R R EF
B RS R B WA N 4916.67 % A%
AiER - HERBWEFTBRPEH
EYELE BAREEEGORZE
Sz I KGR TS Rm
ZITE ATFEZEBRGHEER
REX UWBARREERAERL
A St EAFE R ElIEEN
MRAIE & R R BRI A AN (R
BB FTE e

REBRILIEHZERE  H
REFWERIERBFE AN
SERTRERMERBRARYE
30,000,0007T (48 %5 737,504,000
BL) 2 BIERR S BN ([HERK
RER])  BEREFEN AL
—FRNEE-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Notes. (Continued)

(Continued)

Furthermore, the Group signed a put option agreement with
the major shareholder of Z#FE I, who has 61.67% equity
interest in S & E i &, pursuant to which the Group has the
right to dispose of the Group's entire equity interest in %
ZEFEME through the disposal of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary which held the equity interest over % £ E i & and
the remaining Ying Wah Shareholder’s Loan at a consideration
of the higher of RMB52 million or amount equal to 16.67%
of the performance target, in each case, less the repayment of
the Ying Wah Shareholder’s Loan. The performance target is
based on cumulative sales proceeds accrued by FZEFE H1E in
respect of a specific real estate project during the period from
27 February 2013 up to and including 26 February 2016 to be
audited by an independent auditor jointly appointed by the
Group and the major shareholder. If the performance target is
not available, the consideration shall be deemed to be RMB52
million less the repayment of the Ying Wah Shareholder’s
Loan. The put option can be exercised within 6 months
from 26 February 2016. The put option is carried at cost less
accumulate impairment loss as the fair value of derivative is
linked to and must be settled by delivery of equity instruments
that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

In September 2013, the Group completed the capital injection
process. The put option deed became effective upon the

completion of the capital injection in HEEFH#ZE and
advancement of Ying Wah Shareholder’s Loan.

Annual Report 2014 F

Wizt (#&)
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Uboh - AREEELEREME 2 +
ERF(FHEREFMEST67%
RAREZ) FR L BRERE &
I AEEBEEBLESHRE
EHERAERZHE2EHRBA
AT HERFEEN  HEASE
BN REFEME 2 2R RA R -
RAE A AREES2,000,0007T 8 HE
MERIRE1Z16.67% 2 % 58 (AR
BEAE) MRSERTATN
MRIBERREFER - KREBIRIZ
RZBE—=f-_A=++tHZE=F
—RNFZAZ+ARB(BEZB)
IF BRI SR EE M E B E B AR
BREZREHHEMEHIE (KA
AEBEZEIERIAAEZEZ
B AZBANEZ)FHE i RE
IARBEF AREBEHEEEAR
#52,000,0007T % & HE AR R B ZUR
e h B RBE T —RE=
AZ+RBREFANEANITE- A
A SR HR A R A B TR 5 BT R T
B - ARAFEEEEFE2 /A
TEEMY URNESAZNER
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R RFREEETAR-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Notes: (Continued) BaE: (48)

(Continued) i (%)

In the totality of the above, the Group completed its

b e

investment in EEEFSHIE with the total consideration of
RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately HK$50,685,000),
comprising of:

A LbmE REBNLBARE
A R #40,000,0007T (HHE R4
50,685,000/ 7T, ) T2 A 1A T 3 5 1
EZRE EH8iE:

(i) the 16.67% equity interest in HEREME of (i) HEEME16.67 %M AR
HK$16,238,802 classified as “available-for-sale =P % N 216,238,80278
investments”; T o EA [ATHEHER

=i

(ii) Ying Wah Shareholder’s Loan with an initial fair value (ii) RERRER VIHEQF
of HK$28,177,517 carried at amortised costs and 1E7328,177,5178 7T 1%
classified as “loan to an available-for-sale investee”; B AT D ER
and [ F— B HEEWIRE

FREXR R
(iii) put option to dispose of the Group’s entire equity (iii) AFEBHEREEERM

b

interest in ZEFHIE through the disposal of an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary which held the
equity interest over HEEFEHIE and remaining
Ying Wah Shareholder’s Loan with the fair value of
the put option at the date of initial recognition of
HK$6,268,198 and classified as “derivative financial
instrument”.

The fair value of put option at initial recognition is
measured by the Black-Scholes option pricing model
based on the fair value of the 16.67% equity interest
in EFEHE at initial recognition and the following
assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of

put option.

ERAER B2 EN
BRABAEHBTRERRE
FOHEAEERRESR
WEZ ZHMBAER 2R
SEEIRE RV A RERR B AR
2 N F1{E /36,268,198%
TS ERITESRT
Bl

Roh HiE R VIR TE R 2
AFENEAEHHET
BEEANERAERE
16.67 % IR ANHE s A V) R T
REZAFEFTZE MR
STERAHRZ ATER
BRI TERE-
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Notes. (Continued)

(iii)

Annual Report 2014 F

(Continued)

(Continued)

Exercise price (note a) 1TEE (Hfita)
Expected life of options EHHIRE B
Expected volatility (note b) TEERR IR (Hath)
Expected dividend yield EHIR R &
Risk-free rate # B N) 3

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the

input of highly subjective assumption, including the

volatility of share price. The changes in subjective

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value

estimate.

Notes:

(a)

The exercise price is based on RMB52 million
less the Shareholder’s Loan at the date of
completion of capital injection of RMB30
million as the exercise price is deemed to
include a guarantee for the repayment of the
Shareholder’s Loan.

The expected volatility of the put option
is based on the historical daily share price
movements of a set of comparable companies
over a historical period of 2.5 years.

Hrat: ()

i (%)

(iii)

RMB22,000,000

2.5 years
30.43%
0%
3.84%

(%)

AR #22,000,0007T
2.5%

30.43%

0%

3.84%

EHHARTERATES
ABEXERR BEK
ERE T8E ARER
REHAREZEQTE
fhi&te

K&

(a) ARITEERR
AEREEERR
BRZRE BT
EEDERAR
#52,000,0007T &
AFETEKERZ
BRERERARE
30,000,0007T &

st
= o
Ft

(b) RO ERRE Z TR
f&IIA—/ERI & L
RAFBE25F
ZBEEARES



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WF+—A=+—HILEA

Loans to available-for-sale investees comprise: BRI HEEEWREF ZERBIE:
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—UF —E—OF
+=HA=+—H =—A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Ying Wah Shareholder’s loan (Note (i) RERREZ (H71520)) 33,108,583 30,995,269
Other shareholder’s loan (Note (i) EMARERERK (A Z0)) 1,810,489 -
34,919,072 30,995,269
Analysed for reporting purpose as: REmOTAT
Current assets MENEE 1,810,489 -
Non-current assets EMBEE 33,108,583 30,995,269
34,919,072 30,995,269
Notes: B
(i) The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within three (i) ERAEER RS BEHERR
years from loan advance date (i.e. 26 February 2016). The FEB(ZE-—R"F-_A=+7A)
effective interest rate on this loan is 10% per annum. HMEFXNEE BEREEINERAE
F10%
(i) The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 1 (ii) ERAERM 28 ABRHREN
year from the end of reporting period. KRIEBIENESE-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE _—FE—NF+—_A="+—HIIEA

Cost of investment in an unlisted R—RIFELTEERAZ
joint venture HE KA

Share of post-acquisition profit (losses) JE{k Y BE % % F) (E518)
and other comprehensive income FEMEEEA ()
(expense)

Loan to a joint venture (Note) BT —REERAIZEN

(K7&t)

Share of post-acquisition losses and IR EEER

other comprehensive expense Ht2mmx
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31.12.2014

S L
+=B=+-8
HKS

5T

431,113

431,121

5,355,000

5,355,000

31.3.2014
—E—OF
—A=+—H
HK$

BT

4,000,000

(23,587)

3,976,413



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Note: Pursuant to the shareholder agreement entered into between
a subsidiary of the Company, Reliance Partner Limited, and
other shareholder of the joint venture, the loan to a joint
venture is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment
terms. The loan to a joint venture is classified as non-current
assets because, in the opinion of the directors, the loan will
not be repaid within the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 March 2014, the Group had
interest in the following joint venture:

Form of Principal

business Country place of Class of
Name of entity structure of incorporation operation share held
{54 BERK ARRIER TEERNE FrERAER
Reliance Partner Limited Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong Ordinary

it el B Bk

ES

LA —
N
]\_

1B 4% AN 2 8 ff & 2 AlReliance
Partner Limitedf2& & A &) E fh i%
RN ZBERpE BT —REE
RRIZERAEET 28 BER
TEAB - BT —REERRZE
ROERERDEE RAAES
RAEBRAEF BT ERREHRE
PR ZEAREE-

T-mE+-A=+—AK

—E-NE=A=+—H KX&EH
RN TEERNaEARER:

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital
held by the Group
FE@f
BRTRAAELH

31.12.2014
-e-nf

313.2014
k- Sl 3

Proportion of Principal
voting power held activities

ey ] IERE
3122014 3132014

t-A=t+-A =A=1+-8 t=A=t-A =f=t+-H

%

50

%

3-pE C3pE
% %
50 50 Investment holding

SRR
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WF+—A=+—HI/LEAA

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's AEEEGERAZHBERBE
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial HHT o LT E B E
information below represents amounts shown in the joint ZEENAIRBE B BRELE
venture’s financial statements prepared in accordance with AR s IS mERFTI &8 -
HKFRSs.
The joint venture has accounted for using the equity method in Rt EEREIBEHREAN  ZEEA
these consolidated financial statements. Ay EREREAR
Reliance Partner Limited Reliance Partner Limited
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-NF —Z—-mF
+=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets MENE E 18,767,704 12,354,303
Current liabilities mEnaE (3.305,000) (101,000)
Non-current liabilities FEmBEE (14,600,470) (12,300,485)
862,234 (47,182)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities including the FHREERAGBESEEETY &
following: 18:
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-NF —E—=F
A—H MAE—H=E
E-Z-—MF —E-mNE
+=—HA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Income WA 921,000 -
Profit (loss) for the period/year ANERFE A (E518) 909,416 (47,190)
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Advanceto [E&)z 0 (IB2)BRAA HLTERZ0 (B2F)

("E®izD")

— subscription money (note)

Z BT
—REIA (ML)

Analysed for reporting purpose as: BEEMIEZ DT
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets JERENEE

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group signed a
sale and purchase agreement with one of the shareholders of
[ %228, an independent third party, to acquire 40% equity
interest in % 228 with zero consideration. The acquisition
process was not completed as at 31 December 2014 and 31
March 2014 and is subject to the approval from the Ministry
of Commerce of the PRC. Subsequent to entering the sale
and purchase agreement, the Group injected RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$25,009,000) to [& &2 a8
based on its proportion of shareholdings and such advance
will become its paid-up capital upon the completion of
acquisition. Accordingly, the capital injection is recognised as

advance to a potential investee.

BERAR (TE2Z5])

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-nmEF —ZF—mF
+=A=+-8 =A=+—8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
25,009,379 24,975,025
25,009,379 -
- 24,975,025
25,009,379 24,975,025
Wit REE-ZT-—=F=A=+—H

HFE AEBEHERZHHF
—ZRE(ABIE=7)FE
Bk BEWEESZ340%
AERS  WEREFR T —maF
+ZA=+—RARZTE—NF=
A=+—BAHARER  WEFF
PRI - RET L EE g%
AEBEZREFFRLGIMESZ R
& NR#20,000,0007C (FZER 4
25,009,000/ 7T ) * :Z £ B F R K
ST BB B EE BN E AR -
- BEEEECHERBGET 2B
EWRER 28K
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE—F

Note:

—FEF - A=1—HIEAH

(Continued)

On 21 November 2014, Luxury Field Limited (“Luxury Field"),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of the entire equity interest in Marble
Arch Investments Limited (“Marble Arch”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Luxury Field Limited and a shareholder of a
PRC subsidiary which made advances to potential investees
in previous years, at a consideration of RMB22,104,100
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,640,000). On 17 February
2015, the purchaser has paid HK$1,500,000 to Luxury Field
and on 18 February 2015, both parties agreed to extend the
date of completion until 30 April 2015.

The advance is classified as current asset as at 31 December
2014 as the directors determined the advance is expected to
be recovered within twelve months from the end of reporting
period.

[ %2 58 has not yet commenced business as at 31 December
2014 and 31 March 2014.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—ZET—NmF —E—MmF
+=-A=+-—H —A=+—8H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Inventories: FE:
Raw materials R 21,512,068 24,370,164
Work in progress £ & 11,878,726 15,119,552
Finished goods BIEK o 18,583,547 37,406,920
51,974,341 76,896,636
Record masters g &% 2,127,562 3,203,908
54,101,903 80,100,544
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=F1A—AH -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) Ug RE I B A R (#15#37) 43,445,764
Additions NE 3,516,675
Exchange differences [EH =58 (591,979)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NNE=A=+—H 46,370,460
Exchange differences 5 E% 415,684
At 31 December 2014 R-ZB-NFE+=-A=+—H 46,786,144
The properties under development for sale of the Group are AREB2HFEEREDYEMLNE
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under CWEREBIETRHHEEES 2+
medium-term leases. HoFE FARE F o
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

The properties under development for sale classified as current
assets as at 31 December 2014 and 31 March 2014 which are
expected to be completed and sold after more than twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

The properties under development for sale is developed on
the land in the PRC owned by JEE&M R EEMEMRZEAER
AR ("REEME"), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. On 18 June 2014, FUTHERRIZEEEER
2 =] ("Zhongxing Guosheng”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the controlling shareholder of A& E i
7, initiated civil proceedings against F /& B E in the SF I
MELZE ARAR (“People’s Court of Baoan District”) for
the repayment of the shareholder’s loan owing by Zhongxing
Guosheng of RMB23,479,330. On 19 June 2014, pursuant
to an application made by Zhongxing Guosheng to freeze
and preserve assets of F)EFEHE in the total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the People’s Court
of Baoan District to freeze and preserve the lands owned by
BB E during the period from 24 June 2014 to 23 June
2016 ("Freeze Order”).

On 30 September 2014, the Group received the civil mediation
document (FRE A=) issued by People’s Court of Baoan
District that (i) both/ )& E #Eand the Group confirmed the
shareholder’s loan was in sum of RMB23,479,330; (i) F/5 =
HBEE agreed to repay to the Group the sum of RMB23,479,330
together with the interests accrued from 18 June 2014 until
the date of repayment within 15 days after the effective date
of the civil mediation document (i.e. 15 October 2014); and
(iii) if )5 FEHEE fails to repay the amount stated in (i) in full
on time, the Group has the right to request F/&FEHIE to pay
default interests calculated at two times of the lending rate of
the People’s Bank of China over the same period.

At the date of this report, the shareholder’s loan has not yet
been settled by F)EFEHIZE . In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Freeze Order is for the purpose of securing
the Group's rights to ensure that F)EEE has sufficient
assets to repay the shareholder’s loan to the Group while the
directors of the Company considered there is no impairment
on both the properties under development for sale and the
shareholder’s loan.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &8 TR AEH

The Group's credit terms on manufacturing and sales and
trading of printing products business generally range from
60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a few customers
with whom the Group has a good business relationship and
which are in sound financial condition. The Group allows an
average credit period of 45 days to its customers of artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums.
An aged analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period.

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-UF —ZF—mF
+=A=+—-~H =A=+t—H
HKS HK$

& AT
10,081,840 25,668,800

AEBEHRBEMRE HERE
SF % 2 EEHR —% A60E90
He DEEAREEE R FEHEBEKR
BMBRAART2EFPAZAR
RZEEHR AEEREAEE -
FHERBERBITERERFZ
ZE 8RR F15 B458 - R E H
KB SEWZE (EHNBRRE
BE)BRROMIBIBEZRERHRE
Bl o
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Manufacturing and sales and trading of
printing products operation:

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

Music and entertainment operation:

0 — 45 days
46 - 90 days
91 - 180 days

Total trade receivables

Deposits with brokers’ houses

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Annual Report 2014 F

31.12.2014
—E—F
+=BA=+-—H
HKS$
BT
ENRE mEE - HE X
BHE:

0Z30H 92,018,457
31E60H 17,074,185
61Z290H 7,000,481
HBiE90H 8,557,231
124,650,354

SR IRSE RS
0Z45H 1,734,342
46%E90H 534,502
91Z&180H 1,067,145
3,335,989
B 5 BB IREER 127,986,343
LABITIE R 18,937,264

Al FEAFIEK
H b B FRIE 24,559,332
171,482,939

31.3.2014
—E—OF
—A=+—H
HK$

BT

84,985,696
10,864,660
5,777,668
5,204,279

106,832,303

918,099
423,374
154,667

1,496,140

108,328,443

17,175,463

125,503,906



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_FMFEF—_H="+—HINEA

Trade receivables of approximately HK$21,927,000
(31.3.2014: HK$18,896,000) was denominated in USD, the
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are
reviewed regularly. Approximately 92% (31.3.2014: 95%)
of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
have the best credit quality. These customers have no
default of payment in the past and have good credit rating
attributable under the credit review procedures used by the
Group, including profitability, liquidity, financial leverage and
operational performance quality of the counterparties.

The Group has a policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement
including the creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each client.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$10,159,000
(31.3.2014: HK$5,782,000), which are past due at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the trade receivable and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
131 days (31.3.2014: 131 days).

BB 421,927,000 L (=&
—PF=H=+—H:18,896,000
BIL) 2B SRWIENETTAE
i METILIEERNEEELE 2T

REE-

AREBEZEMTIONFEZER &
EFHBERFPZEEEEZRE
BEEREEERE -%92% (=F
—FE=ZA=+—H:95% )W K
BMENEREE S EW KB
EREFEEEEZ -ZEXFPBAAY
BN WA AEBFTAEE
mEiEF (BIEYEH 2 &F8
MEED  MIEEEREERRE
X)TPESRIFEEFH-

R EE R E KRB E K
R BBTRIBEE RIA RN YL@ 1T 2
A RERESTAREREZ ¥
B (BREEEPZEEMEEE
RS ER) MAEH

REBZE SHRWGIES - BIEER
[ 42 %8 4710,159,000/8 T (=&
—MF=H=+—H:5,782,000
BIT) 2 FEUGRIE - ZERWFIR
RS ARE@E EASEL
EIREREREREG RESEH
BORKFIBEZ EEERNESE
g85) HEBFRNER BRI
Ble REBEWERZSEHRTE
FAEFR - ZERRKFKIEZF
HEREA1318 (ZE—NWFE=A
=+—HB:1318) °
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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Printing operation:

91 — 180 days

Music and entertainment operation:
46 — 90 days

91 - 180 days

Total

Balance at beginning of the period/year
Impairment losses recognised

on receivables
Amounts written off as uncollectible
Exchange realignment

Balance at end of the period/year
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Bl S 75 -
91Z%180H
BRRIRERT
46Z90H
912180H

e

8,/ F S
AR HOB B 2 AL A
B

BT S M 5 7 AR 2 48
2 %

HlFREE#

31.12.2014
—EB-QmF

+t=A=+—AH

HK$
BT

8,557,231

534,502
1,067,145

10,158,878

31.12.2014
—g-nf

+t=A=+-—AH

HK$
BT
2,200,764
1,253,423

(3,762)

3,450,425

31.3.2014
—E—mOF
=A=+—8H
HK$

BT

5,204,279

423,374
154,667

5,782,320

31.3.2014
—E—OF
=A=+—8H
HK$

BT

2,201,174

281,365
(281,365)
(410)

2,200,764



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$163,000 (31.3.2014: HK$163,000) which
have been in severe financial difficulties in repaying their
outstanding balances. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The trade receivables past due but
not provided for as at the end of the reporting period were
either subsequently settled or no historical default of payments
was noted by the respective customers. The concentration of
credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. The directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful
debts.

FEBRX

Fixed-rate loan B EK

H

The loans receivable had contractual maturity dates within 1
year as at 31 December 2014.

The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment,
including the current creditworthiness, collaterals and the past
collection history of each client.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WF+—A=+—HI/LEAA

In determining the recoverability of the loans receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the loans
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the directors believe
that there is no further credit provision required. There is no
loans receivables which were past due but not impaired at the
end of reporting period for which the Group believes that the
amounts are considered recoverable as the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each client are satisfactory.

The average interest rate for the fixed-rate loans receivable
was ranging from 15% to 30% (31.3.2014: nil) per annum.

The loans receivable as at 31 December 2014 are secured
by properties located in Hong Kong. The fair values of these
properties is higher than the carrying amounts of respective
loans receivable.

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who can exercise significant
influence over the Company, is one of the ultimate owners of
the related company. The Group's credit terms of 30 days has
been granted to the related company.

An ageing analysis of amount due from a related company
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.

0 - 30 days 0%30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 912180H
Over 180 days FE#E180H
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31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—Z2-HmF —TmF
+=A=+—8” =A=+—H
HK$ HK$

e BT
202,240 866,623
3,040 1,233,360
200,000 1,495,272
802,355 100,000
1,480,268 338,801
2,687,903 4,034,056



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
BE—F—WF+—A=+—HI/LEAA

Included in the amount due from a related company with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$2,724,000
(31.3.2014: HK$3,167,000), which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the amount is subsequently settled. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of these receivables is 204 days (31.3.2014: 72

days).

31-60 days 31£260H
61-90 days 61290H
91-180 days 912180H
Over 180 days #E#8180H
Total #Et

JEW —REERBIRIEF  BIE
BR TE 42 %8 492,724,000/ 70 ( =&
—FE=HA=+—H:3,167,000
BITIRREPREBE R
SEVEARBEBERE K
H RAREBEREAEEBDEE-
AEBUVERZEEHRFEEN
B - 2R NGUR 2 FH R
R204H (ZE2E—UFE=ZRA=4+—
H: 72H) °

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—Z2-HmF —T-mF
+=A=+—8” =A=+—H
HK$ HK$

e BT

3,040 1,233,360

200,000 1,495,272
802,355 100,000
1,480,268 338,801
2,485,663 3,167,433
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-term
bank deposits of approximately HK$6,497,000(31.3.2014:
HK$14,691,000), HK$5,694,000 (31.3.2014: HK$14,228,000)
and HK$566,000 (31.3.2014: HK$601,000) were denominated
in USD, HK$ and EURO respectively, the currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

As at 31 March 2014, bank balances and short-term deposits
of approximately HK$1,810,000 were denominated in RMB,
the currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies.

Furthermore, included in the short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$82,830,000 (31.3.2014: HK$94,566,000),
which are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (31.3.2014: 0.1% to
2.5%) per annum.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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The following is an aged analysed of trade payable presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

0 - 30 days 0%30M

31 - 60 days 31%60H
61 — 90 days 61%£90H
Over 90 days #83®90H

Accrued expenses and other payables — FE&t & 3 & H 4th fE~f ZUE

The credit period ranged from 90 days to 120 days. The Group
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that
all payables within the credit timeframe.

Trade payables of approximately HK$108,000 (31.3.2014:
HK$108,000) and HK$796,000 (31.3.2014: HK$214,000) were
denominated in RMB and USD respectively, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities as at 31 December 2014. As at 31 March 2014, trade
payables of approximately HK$358,000 were denominated in
JPY, which is currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entity.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

ATARHEHRREZZ A H
2B PR FIBRE DT -

31.12.2014 31.3.2014
=EF-mE —FnmF
+=A=+—8 =A=+—8H
HK$ HK$

BT BT
37,309,282 35,037,646
11,968,792 12,745,185
4,721,664 2,703,904
2,181,273 108,344
56,181,011 50,595,079
22,272,531 24,912,521
78,453,542 75,507,600
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

Bz =

E-—WEFEF _A="+—HIIEA

The following table provides an analysis of the borrowings:

Secured bank borrowing (Note a)
Secured bank import loans (Note b)
Secured other borrowing (Note ¢)

Unsecured other borrowings (Note d)

Carrying amount of secured bank
borrowing that is repayable within
one year from the end of
the reporting period and contains
a repayment on demand clause

Carrying amount of secured bank
import loans that are repayable
within one year from the end of
the reporting period and contains
a repayment on demand clause

Carrying amount of secured other
borrowing that contains
a repayment on demand clause:
— repayable within one year
— repayable more than one year,

but not exceeding two years
— repayable more than two years

Carrying amount of unsecured other
borrowings that are repayable
within one year from the end of
the reporting period and contains
a repayment on demand clause

Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities
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31.12.2014
—B-mE
+=A=+-H
HK$

B

6,000,000

4,457,500

10,457,500

6,000,000

4,457,500
10,457,500

(10,457,500)
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31.3.2014
—EF—OF
=A=t—H
HK$

BT

6,000,000
3,225,544

9,490,568

18,716,112

6,000,000

3,225,544

2,969,909

3,159,520
3,361,139

18,716,112

(18,716,112)



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE—F

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

—FEF - A=1—HIEAH

Secured bank borrowing

The secured bank borrowing is repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment on
demand clause and carries at HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum.

Secured bank import loans

As at 31 March 2014, the secured bank import loans were
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting
period but contained a repayment on demand clause and
carry at HIBOR plus spread, ranging from 1.6% to 2.1% per

annum.

Secured bank import loans of HK$3,225,544 were
denominated in USD, the currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

There is no secured bank import loan as at 31 December
2014.

Secured other borrowing

As at 31 March 2014, the secured other borrowing was
repayable within three years from the end of the reporting
period but contained a repayment on demand clause and
bears a fixed interest rate of 6.235% per annum and secured
by property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$8,587,150. The borrowing was fully repaid during
the current period.

Unsecured other borrowings
The unsecured other borrowings are repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment
on demand clause and bear a fixed interest rates, ranging
from 15% to 30% per annum.

Wt

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BEMARTHEE
BEEMBTEEAN RS HRE
A FAEERE EHARERER
G WIREFRBRITRENR S
1.5% 2 FFI =58 o

BEMBITADER

RZZE—MF=A=+—H &
HIRTAOBERERRESHARE
AIFAEERE BHEREREER
1ERC WIRFBBITRZEFRSMN
T1.6%ZE2.1% 2 822 FHE5t

B o
N

AR IT A O E 53,225,544
JCUAZETUETE - M T IEE RIS

EEREzYEES

RZE—WFE+—A=+—HI#E
BEMBITAOERK-

FEAHEMEE
RZE-—MFE=A=+—H8 K
HEMEEBEN RS AREA=F
WEE  BERBIEEREZER
I 1% B E F F E6.235%F B0 I
LA BF T 421E8,587,150/8 7t 2 &
BEEEF - BEEERAHRR
HEE-

IR E Mg &
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The following are the major deferred tax liability (asset)
recognised and movements thereon during the current period
and prior year:

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

miE

BEHE

HK$

BT

At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWMA—A 7,888,811
Credit to profit or loss for the year B AKEIEZR (1,120,326)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-—NF=RA=+—H 6,768,485
Credit to profit or loss for the period ~ # AR 1E % (1,655,000)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZB-ME+=-A=+—-H 5113485

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$126,190,000
(31.3.2014: HK$85,923,000) available to offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$976,000 (31.3.2014: HK$976,000) of
the tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$125,214,000
(31.3.2014: HK$84,947,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unused tax losses
of HK$9,116,000, HK$5,263,000, HK$4,718,000 and
HK$11,000,000 (31.3.2014: HK$5,263,000, HK$4,718,000
and HK$11,000,000) that will expire by 2019, 2018, 2017 and
2016 (31.3.2014: 2018, 2017 and 2016). Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.
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Tax Intangible
losses assets Total
BEER BREE @it
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B
(161,096) 972,205 8,699,920
- (94,795) (1,215,121)
(161,096) 877,410 7,484,799
- - (1,655,000)
(161,096) 877,410 5,829,799

RI|E R NEBE A HIEHER
Fom A 2 Bt AR B AR E B L
£126,190,000/8 Tt (= Z — Y
F=H=+4+—H:85,923,000/&
J0) e ANEE B F A8 47976,000
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EEFIE B E o R BELATE IR
Hosm FR = - B £ g H R B S
E548125,214,000/8 7T (=& —Y
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TL)ERELEHIBEE 5T AK
RS E1E 29,116,000/ 7T
5,263,000 7T - 4,718,000 7T
11,000,000 7t (—Z & — U F
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Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$9,100,000 (31.3.2014: HK$10,258,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BIRE(EO0.05E T EiEAR
Authorised: VERE
At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FWA—AH
Share consolidation (note i) READ & 6 (Krati)
At 31 March 2014 and R-ZF—NF
31 December 2014 =A=+—8k
—E—UF
+=ZA=+—H
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 ~ R=F— =%
mA—H&
—m_—o
=A=+—H
Share consolidation (note i) 1D & Bt (KaEi)
At 31 March 2014 R-_T—NF
=A=+—H
Issued of placing shares (note ij) ERTESRKRN
(Kt atii)
At 31 December 2014 R-_E—NE
+=—B=+—H

mﬁqﬂlm%)ﬁﬁ SHE - B B

NABE_EENF—A—HE
ﬁﬁﬂxzmﬂ &2 IR BIBBINTE
FIFR o R AN 2 B B4 i) A B B /S
NRRERMTEE 2 G ERE
2 FEOIFE - BRRR =R T KA e
A B g R EE - Eﬁzﬂﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬂ%a,ﬁﬁ
&R A FL9,100,0008 7T (==
—PE=H=+—H:10,258,000
/%E)ZEquTiﬁﬁﬁth LfRIE%é
f& o

HK$

BT

100,000,000,000 500,000,000
(90,000,000,000) -
10,000,000,000 500,000,000
10,193,545,600 50,967,728
(9,174,191,040) =
1,019,354,560 50,967,728
448,500,000 22,425,000
1,467,854,560 73,392,728
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Notes:

(i) Pursuant to special resolution passed on 5 April 2013, the
Company's every 10 issued shares of par value of HK$0.005
each are consolidated into 1 consolidated share of par value of
HK$0.05 each.

(ii) On 28 August 2014, 203,860,000 new ordinary shares of
the Company of HK$0.05 each were issued to independent
third parties by placing at a price of HK$0.163 per share. On
7 October 2014, 244,640,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.05 each were issued to independent third
parties by placing at price of HK$0.156 per placing share.

All the shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares of
the Company in all respect.

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Limited (“Neway
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Neway Entertainment Group”) from Neway Enterprise
Holdings Limited (“Neway Enterprise”). At the same time,
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who has control over Neway
Enterprise, granted a put option (“Put Option”) to the Group,
exercisable at any time from the completion of the acquisition
("Completion”) to 1 July 2011 to require Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher to buy back the entire equity interest in Neway
Entertainment Group at a consideration of HK$65,000,000
and any investment cost contributed by the Group after the
Completion. On 29 June 2011, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher,
agreed to extend the Put Option period to 1 July 2012. On 29
June 2012, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, further agreed to
extend the Put Option period to 1 April 2013. On 28 March
2013, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, agreed to extend the Put
Option to 30 September 2013. On 30 September 2013, Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, agreed to extend the Put Option
to 31 March 2014. All other terms of the Put Option remained
unchanged.
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014
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At the special general meeting of the Company on 13
February 2014, the shareholders approved the non-exercise in
the Put Option. Accordingly, the Put Option is lapsed on 31
March 2014.

The fair value of the Put Option has been re-measured on
the date of extension on 1 July 2012, 31 March 2013 and 30
September 2013 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
at HK$58,102,788, HK$53,533,077 and HK$43,537,618,
respectively. The fair value of the Put Option upon the
extension of the Put Option period is considered as a deemed
contribution from the shareholder and is credited to reserve.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of Put Option.

Share price (note i) W1 (f152i)
Exercise price 1fefE

Expected life of options HHEEE
Expected volatility (note ij) TBHI R (4 5ti)
Expected dividend yield TBHIRR B &

Risk free rate ERRMN =

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumption, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price is the equity value of Neway Entertainment,
which is determined based on the future discounted cashflow

of Neway Entertainment.

(ii) The expected volatility of the Put Option based on the
historical daily share price movements of a set of comparable

companies over a historical period of 0.5 year.

R-ZZE—NME-_A+=B8172
K@ﬁ%%%%ﬁAi,%%m
JENITE G HARE - E It - 3804 B
ER-_ZE—NUFE=ZA=1+—HX
2 o

RHBHEIATEERERE
A(Bl—_E——&#+H—H-
—E—=ZF=ZA=+—HBkZ=
T —=—FNA=1+H)FERE&
HETEEXNSREHNFZER
58,102,788/ 7T ~ 53,533,077/ 7T
43,537,618/8 7T o sdoh HAE R 7R
SHEREEIREREZ 2 A FEER
BIRRZBIEER WAt ARERH -

MTF“E%MJZ%ﬁ%%Z
NS IER

30 September

2013
—E-=F
hA=+H

HK$21,391,000% 1
HK$65,000,000/%8 1
0.5 year F

30%

0%

0.22%

BHROREREXEIHATE
EEHR - BERERE- TR
ANBREDITKIEY SO FEE
it

Hise -

(i) % {8 ANeway Entertainment #
#{B1E  J9¥%Neway Entertainment
ZWERRRESTRMET -
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RER S SHER-
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In July 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in FERMHIEEMERZEERAA ("RERE
HE") . RIEEME is principally engaged in the property
development in the PRC. This transaction was for the purpose
of acquiring properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business, and has been accounted for as a
purchase of assets and the associated liabilities rather than as
a business combination. The Group has already paid for the
consideration of RMB1,200,000 and advanced a loan to #/&
B E of RMB18,179,000 (approximately HK$24,227,000).

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment W - WE R
Other receivables o fh FE W SR IE
Properties under development for sale &R P

Bank balances and cash IRITEBR MRS
Amount due to the Group JE 1 7N &2 (B 50IR

Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of /5 & i &

Other payables and accrued charges  H i & 718 & fE =1 & A

BEFEDARE

Consideration paid in prior years

Plus: Non-controlling interests (Note) Al : JE¥RRRAE %S (H7aE)

BEWEEERE

Net assets acquired

Note: The non-controlling interests are determined by reference to
proportionate share of recognised amounts of assets acquired
and liabilities recognised of F/5EFEHZE at the date of
acquisition.
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#18,179,0007T (424,227,000
BIT) FHRBEEME-
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N
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m

HK$
BT

23,470
1,209,699
43,445,764
186,746
(23,034,719)

e AR IB B EE — % FR IR R B R 3R0R

(17,763,825)
(1,532,923)

2,534,212

1,520,527
1,013,685

2,534,212
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Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WBEEEE2HESRAFE:
HK$
ow

Cash consideration paid EfRENRE -

Less: Bank balances and cash acquired & - E BB IRTT &2 IR & 186,746

186,746

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REBEHR AEERDEZT

commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- AR ESTEERENMN 2 ARZFIE

cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall FHE R IEAVE R LA T H R B H A%

due as follows: 1<t

31.12.2014 31.3.2014

—F-mE —F@OmF

+t=A=+—-AR =A=+—H

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FR 18,585,295 13,331,798
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERFNA

(BHEEEMF) 26,690,299 25,137,312

Over five years B iR T F 45,889,083 47,990,308

91,164,677 86,459,418

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHERBEASERURF

Group for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. B ImENRETFEEENZ

Leases for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated e - IRmYWEREIEE 2HE

for terms of 1 to 50 years. Rentals are fixed for 1 to 50 years. EERIBSOFEAF-HEME

504 7 B 52 R o
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted NEREEIR  AREEGHBWE
with tenants for the future minimum lease payments under ARG EHEDHHEHPET 4
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises %I HI R B B 2 oK 2R FE ~f S (K
which fall due as follows: MERIE:
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-NF —E—OF
+=ZA=+—H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FNK 638,505 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEERAFN(BE
HEME) 231,335 -
869,840 -
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—-MF —ZT—F
+=A=+—-~ =A=+t—H
HKS HKS$
BT BT

Capital expenditure contracted for but A T &EEET 4B KRTE

not provided in the consolidated REPBRERPIRE
financial statements in respect of: R A NG
— acquisition of property, plant and —WHEME BE X
equipment B 100,038 2,001,083
— prepaid lease payments in the PRC -RHPBRZENEE
IR 13,146,263 13,128,205

13,246,301 15,129,288
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The Group’s share of the capital commitments made jointly
with other joint venturer relating to its joint venture, Reliance
Partner Limited, is as follows:

RMBCR &R 2 AR

Commitment to provide
shareholders’ loan

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (“ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December, 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

AEES(FHEMELEFTRES
%\ TReliance Partner Limitedit

BEL 2 EAAEWNT
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—-F —E—OF
+=BA=+—8H =A=+—H
HK$ HK$
BT BT
34,645,000 36,000,000

AEBAEEEZATAERE
B 17T TE B R K& A 5T 2
([ORSO&T&l]) - ORSOFT & 2 &
ERETIAESzEZSEHA B
EBCEEDFAKEE - ¥ORSOF!
2|7 M J53E ORSO &l 2 47 BI AT
RIAZ LR E - R BRI 2K
EY 1S £ X AT E £ ORSOET &l - BIIA
EEEEL 2H/RAUE R K 2 4H
KRR

—EETEFT_A—AE K
SETEA/ERERERES NG
HREeE ([RESFE]) -
BETEERERFELTER
srElEPIm RS ME A TE R EE
BREM - BB 2 EERE
MERARGZESRKA  BA%
B EEDFRIE - RIEBESET
g BEEXRHEEBSAZMAIFIH
ZRmRES T SIERH R
AEBEERABRESHEI2E—]
ERELRE L 2K - R B
WS BB SR ER T & 208
W B ERET A A S0 ORUR SR R FE(F
oz R
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The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising
from the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in the
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal
government of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to
fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions to the
scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.
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Apart from the amount due from a related company as
disclosed in note 29 and the transaction as detailed in
note 36, during the period/year, the Group has entered
into significant transactions between related parties
and subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

Promotion service fee income  HEERBEE U A

(Note 1) (Hiat1)
Licensed fee income (Note 1) 455 BUWA (A1)
Sales of goods (Note 1) LESm(#a1)
Office rental expenses (Note 1) W AZEMEmML (A1)
Premises rental expenses WERESHZ (F1i22)
(Note 2)
Notes:
(1) The transactions were carried out with Neway Karaoke

Box Limited and its subsidiaries which are controlled
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher.

(2) The transaction was carried out with another related
company, which is beneficially owned by Mr. SUEK Ka
Lun, Ernie.

Br B 5E29RT I 52 B U — =X

RN

7 XA LA K Mt 5E36

Atz RSN B ERAR
SEESTHEALRAR
A B ARET T IIZRE

AR5
1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E—-NF —E—=%F
A—HZ WMA—B=Z
—=-mE —
+=BA=+—8H =A=+—8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
= 4,003,600
1,900,000 1,040,000
192,160 273,490
270,000 360,000
749,997 1,000,000

Hat:

(1

ZER ST EABRE
142 %) 2 Neway Karaoke
Box Limited Jz H [ff & 2 &
AT

ZRGDEFERBELEE

BHEAZ S RBEQA
#EIT
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The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the period/year was as

follows:
Short-term benefits f_&iﬂﬁ%ﬂ
Post-employment benefits BB 12 48 F

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes borrowings disclosed in note 33, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.
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On 28 January 2015, Grand Prospects Finance International
Limited (“Grand Prospects”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a loan agreement with the borrower
pursuant to which the Grand Prospects agreed to grant to the
borrower, an independent third party, a loan in the principal
amount of HK$20,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 3%
per month for a period of one month

On 11 February 2015, Neway Entertainment Limited (“NEL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a
share subscription agreement with Soliton Holdings Limited
("Soliton”), pursuant to which NEL agrees to subscribe for
and purchase from Soliton, and Soliton agrees to issue to
NEL the subscription shares at US$1,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$7,780,000). The subscription shares represent
approximately 4.41% of the enlarged issued share capital
of Soliton as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
subscription shares.

On 18 February 2015, Luxury Field signed a supplemental
agreement on the disposal of Marble Arch with the purchaser
that the date of completion of the transaction will be extended
on or before 30 April 2015. Also, Luxury Field has received a
partial consideration of HK$1,500,000 from the purchaser.

On 3 March 2015, Grand Prospects entered into a loan
agreement with the borrower and the guarantors pursuant to
which the Grand Prospects agreed to grant to the borrower,
an independent third party, a loan in the principal amount of
HK$11,000,000, bearing interest at a rate of 15% per annum
for a term of 12 months.
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RZE-—RAF_A+—8"
REB 22 EMNEB A A Neway
Entertainment Limited ([NEL])
HiSoliton Holdings Limited
([Soliton ] ) 5T 3 B 17 3R B8 13 i
1% 1t - NEL[R] Z 1,000,000 7T
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As stated in note 15, due to the Group's recurring loss resulted
in manufacturing and sale of printing products segment,
the directors of the Company also conducted an impairment
assessment of the Group's assets based on value in use
calculation.

There are two separated CGUs in the manufacturing and
sale of printing products segments, Factory A and Factory
B. Factory A is responsible for the manufacturing and sale
of printing products to Hong Kong or overseas customers
and Factory B is responsibility for manufacturing and sale of
printing products to the customers located in the PRC.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2014, Factory B
recorded a recurring operating cash inflow from its operation
and management considered that there is no impairment
indication on the assets allocated to this CGU.

Annual Report 2014 F 3§

AN sE15PT A c A AN E B R
N EmBEEREE DI HIRL
BHEE ARREENRAEE
LEERTREBHE R EET
BB o

EplEmBEREESEREM
EB L IREEESBN DR ATK
AN THB - THABE AE B K
N P BLE I (A 18 5 85 B ED
Em mIWBAIBERTEERF
BENAFRSHEENRER-

BE-_Z-W+=-A=t+—HL
NEA - THBEEEETHREE
FUHEERSAA BEERR
NTREHRCELENZEEY
ERETR -



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

AR IHMALBEEEEE Bt

Due to the recurring loss resulted in Factory A, an impairment

assessment was performed on Factory A. The property, ITHAETHETE - DE HWE
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments have been HEURTENAERED 5
allocated to Factory A. Details are set as follows: ZETIHA BT :
Before After
impairment Impairment impairment
AR RE HE®R
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Property, plant and equipment ME BB K&
- Buildings —BF 93,202,080 - 93,202,080
— Leasehold improvement —THEMEEE 4,335,248 (4,335,248) -
— Furniture, fixtures and office —Ef - RERBAE
equipment Bgi] 3,866,796 (3,866,796) -
— Machinery and equipment —HERZE 36,468,280 (25,749,503) 10,718,777
Prepaid lease payments TEfAERE 2,719,855 - 2,719,855
Total assets allocated to CGU DEERGELENZ
BEE 140,592,259 (33,951,547) 106,640,712

For impairment assessment on Factory A, the recoverable HIMAZRBEFNEME BRI
amount of the CGU has been determined based on value 7] J/X—Isgpﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂjm,ﬂ—r
in use calculation as there is no basis for making a reliable NEFTESSHRHEEENE
estimate of the price at which an orderly transaction to sell ROER BIReELE MZ—MQ
the assets would take place under current market conditions. EleBIHRBFERAEENERE
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial BT - ZAEHAFRBEELE

budgets approved by management covering 5-years period, BEfEz AFHMERES T

growth rate of 3% and discount rate of 15%. The cash flow
beyond the 5-years period are extrapolated having a steady
3%. The growth rate is based on budgeted growth rate, which
is determined by management’s expectations for the market
development, and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the printing industry. Other key assumption
of the value in use calculation is based on the budgeted
cash inflow/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin on respective products from the CGU, such estimations
are based on the past performance.

Ziﬁﬂimni]’ﬁi E'J 3%Zi§T&
15% 2 FrE R AFHUIINZIE
&7 ;)|L§E\|JT§FH3%Z%EEE—_?—TE
B o ZEREDNREEEHMSHE
R EEMEE B BBEMEHET
FTFHRERER - FRAEETE
H&Zﬁ@z%@“»ﬁiﬁ
S mETEE AR EPBRIENB
TRESEMEEZREELSE

UEHEERIESEHEEBLER
10
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At the same time, the recoverable amounts of the buildings
and prepaid lease payments have been determined on the
basis of their fair values less costs of disposal. The fair values
of the relevant assets at the end of the reporting period
were based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer, Shenzhen Changji Real Estate Appraisal
Limited ORINITTREF METEHBR A E) . The fair value
was determined by reference to the depreciated replacement
cost approach, which takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use. The fair value measurement of buildings and prepaid
lease payments are categorised as Level 3 fair value hierarchy
as at 31 December 2014. There has been no change to the
valuation technique during the year. There is no impairment on
buildings and prepaid lease payments recognised during the
years ended 31 December 2014.

Impairment loss of the CGU amounting to HK$33,951,547
is charged to profit or loss as the recoverable amount of
the CGU is lower than carrying amount of the CGU. As the
buildings and prepaid lease payments has the higher of the
fair value less cost of disposal than their carrying amounts, the
impairment loss is then allocated to machinery and equipment
of HK$25,749,503, leasehold improvements of HK$4,335,248
and furniture, fixtures and office equipment of HK$3,866,796
respectively.
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ARABHMBARR-ZZE—WE
+—A=+—BE-_ZT—NF=
A=+—RB2#E-

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2014 and 31 March 2014.

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
FRAMBERT
EMERL BagRT/ BA/EREE
WEARER o ff i A AR A EREAL TEER
31.12.2014 3132014
ZE-MmE —T-mF
+=8 =A
=t-A =t-H
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
("BVI")
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited HEBREUEHE 10,0004 7L 5 @B % 100 100 #REZK
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
HK$500,000
deferred non-voting
PREIBIBR AR &R 1,000/ 7T & B 100 100 REER
500,000/ 7T
ERZRELTK
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
Co., Ltd. (note 1) registered capital printing
BRI ORI BRRA (Hi#1) e 12,000,000 7 100 100 BERAXDR
hRERI (BR) BRAE (note 1) The PRC HK$72,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
hREVRI (GBR) BRAR (Hit1) hE 72,000,000/ T 100 100 EEXHK
AMEX
BRER (BE)BRAF (note 1) The PRC HK$ 10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
BRER (&) BRAA (M) e 10,000,000 7 100 100 EEXHK
A BAERAKMERAR (hote 1) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
R AERARMBRAR (1) hE AR #1,000,0007 100 100 EEEHK
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
APRRBCRT
FRARL/ B4CRT/ BA/EREE
WEARER T2 AR A ERE TEEH
31122014 3132014
ZE-MmE -2
+=8 =A
=t-8 =t+-A
% %
SHENR ORI BERAF (note 1) The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
registered capital printing
s@ER ORI BRRA (HzF1) i 30,000,000 7C 100 100 BERAREDF
Tt &R
IEEERERH (RY)BRAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1) registered capital
JEERREZA (RI)BEBRRA HE AKH#1,000,0007 100 100 REER
(Hit1) BRIEE
R TR AREEAERAH The PRC HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 3) registered capital
AITRAREFABRDA i AK#2,000,0007 100 100 REER
(Hit3) AR
BUTERREERARAA The PRC HK$20,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 4) registered capital
BILTERREEBERAT i AK#20,000,0007T 100 100 EEZH
(Hiita) BRIEE
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Label and offset
Limited HK$10,000 printing
deferred non-voting
hREIR (R E) BR A A BE 1,000 7T & &k 100 100  BERAXEF
10,000 7T
BRFEELR
h 2 RENRI CRIDBRAR The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
(note 1) registered capital printing
th 2 KEDRI CRID ARAR i 98,000,000% 7T 100 100 BHERAREDF
(Hii1) BRIEEN
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRR FRERT
ERAL/ BaERT/ BA/ EHEE
WEARER ot ff i B A R A EREAL TEEHR
31.12.2014  31.3.2014
ZE-mF —T-MF
+=8 =A
=t-B =t-H
% %
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company Limited HK$1,000,000
deferred non-voting
BRAALDRERRF B 1,000/ 7T & B 100 100 EEEH
1,000,0007% 7T
BRFEELER
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of printing
products
RRERAT &R 200,000 T & B R 100 100 EBEARER
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
HK$2
deferred non-voting
PAREERAERAA BiE 1008 T & B 100 100 WERE
2T
BREBERLR
Chung Tai Investment & Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Development Co. Limited
PAREERRBRAA B 1BTEBKR 100 100 REAR
New Box Mini Storage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Engaging in mini
(previously known as Chung Tai HK$2 storage business
Management Limited) deferred non-voting
PRRIREERAA BE 1008 T & B 100 100 REXFEEXRHK
(FIBRAEEBRAA) 2B
BRERERER
Fruitful Global (Asia) Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
(previously known as Chung Tai
Packaging Limited)
SERR (TN BRAR BB 10,0008 7T & & A 100 100 EEXHK

(MR ABKARAR)
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inco
Name of subsidiary

Place of
rporation/

registration

ERAL/
WEARER Balischs
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI
Brilliant Wise International Limited RERAES
Gain Capital International Limited BVI
Gain Capital International Limited RERAHS
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong
EEBXBRAT Bk
NEL BVI
NEL RBRAEE
Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong
EREBFRAT B
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited Hong Kong
ER%(RT)BRAA &R
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong
TEREIBBERAR BB
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Paid up
issued/registered
share capital

¢ GESVE
8

US$1 ordinary
[E:E

US$1 ordinary
1ETEBR

HK$1 ordinary
BT EBR

US$1 Ordinary
1ETEBR

HK$1 Ordinary
TETEER

HK$1 Ordinary

HK$10,000 Ordinary

10,0007 7T L @R

Effective percentage
of issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
APRRBCRT
BE/ZMER
ERE

31122014 3132014

ZE-mF —T-MF

+=8 =A

=t-A =t-AH

% %

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principal activities

EX:E

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
REER

Inactive

EEXH

Investment holding

REZR

Inactive

LEXH

Provision of artists
management and
music licensing
services and sales of
music albums

REZAEER
BERTRE R
HEBLER

Provision of music
licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding

REELETRY
HETLBR R
REER
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRR FRERT
ERAL/ BaERT/ BA/ EHEE
WEARER ot ff i B EMRE EREAL TEEHR
31.12.2014  31.3.2014
ZE-mF —T-MF
+=8 =A
=t-B =t-H
% %
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
KERERRA 7R 10,0008 T & @R 100 100 EEEHE
Neway Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Inactive
MERYERERRAT BB 10,0007 72 & & Ak 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Music Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Inactive
MERSLREERAR BB 10,0008 7T & & A% 100 100 EEXHK
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artists
Limited management
services
MEREEERARAA BE 10,0008 T & B 100 100 REBAEERHK
SmartMax International Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
SmartMax International Limited EBEAHE [E:3iE 100 100 #REZR
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
REBRA (EM)BRAA BB 1ETEBKR 100 100 EEXH
Dream Class Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Dream Class Limited ABRLES 50,0005 T & &k 100 100 EEXK
Power Rank International Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Power Rank International Limited EBRUHE 50,0005 T & @ 100 100 #REZK
Hero Chance Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Hero Chance Limited EBELHE 50,0005 7T & @ 100 100 REZR
Victor Glory Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Victor Glory Limited EBRLME 50,0003 7T & i Ak 100 100 REZK
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRR FRERT
ERAL/ BaERT/ BA/ EHEE
WEARER ot ff i B EMRE EREAL TEEHR
31.12.2014  31.3.2014
ZE2-mE —T-[EF
+=8 =A
=t-B =t-H
% %
Golden Richland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
TEARAT 7R 10,0008 T & @R 100 100 EEEHE
Nation Profit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
NMFBEBR R BB 10,0007 72 & & Ak 100 100 REER
Star Rank Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Star Rank Limited RERTES 50,0003 7T & 3 i 100 100 REER
Max Synergy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EEERAA BE 10,0008 7T & B 100 100 EEXK
Selection Goal Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Selection Goal Limited RERAES 1ETEBR 100 100 ®EZK
Neway Group Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
PERRBRAT BB 1BTERKR 100 100 EEXH
Troupe Magnesium Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 65 65  Investment in
Limited drama show
ERGEHERAA Bk 10,0008 70 & B 65 65 KREEAE
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
AARERRARA BE 1BTERR 100 100 EEES
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited RERAES 50,000% 1L & &% 100 100 ®EZK
Fruitful Global Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
SERRARLA BB 1BTERK 100 100 EEXH
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KRR FRERT
ERAL/ BaERT/ BA/ EHEE
WEARER ot ff i B EMRE EREAL TEEHR
31.12.2014  31.3.2014
“E-QmE —ZT-QmF
+=8 =A
=t-B =t-H
% %
Grand Prospects Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
% Bk 100,000 L& B 100 100 HE
Neway Investments Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Limited
mEREZRREBLA BB 1BTEBKR 100 100 EEXH
Star Digital International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EHHBARAT BB 1BTEBKR 100 100 EEXK
Luxury Field Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Luxury Field Limited HKBRUHE 50,0005 7T & @ % 100 100 #REZR
Marble Arch Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
ERREEBERLA BiE 1BTEBRKR 100 100 REER
Pacific Olive Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Pacific Olive Limited RERTES 50,0005 7T & B i 100 100 REEK
Fabulous Star Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
ERREARRAT B 1BTEBKR 100 100 REZR
Takara Global Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100* - Gaming
ERRNEREBAA B BT LER 100 - BE
Takara International Investment BVI US$100 ordinary 100 - Investment holding
Limited
Takara International Investment EBELHE 100X T ERR 100¢ - REER
Limited
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Place of
incorporation/

Name of subsidiary registration

g2MAY/
WEARERE T it 2
Estate Summit Limited BVI
Estate Summit Limited EBREZES
New Tycoon Global Limited BVI
New Tycoon Global Limited RERAHS
Smithfield Ventures Limited BVI
Smithfield Ventures Limited RBRUHEE
AImFEEEREERER AR The PRC
(note 2)
FmhEAREERRBRAA HE
(Hiz2)
P EZEREREER AR The PRC
(note 1)
LT EEERENERRAA HE
(Hz1)
REEY (AR) EEBRAR The PRC
(note 5)
HEEY (LR ULEEERAH HE
(Hi#t5)
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Paid up
issued/registered
share capital

¢ GESVE
8

US$1 ordinary
[E:E

US$1 ordinary
1ETEBR

US$1 ordinary
1ETEBR

RMB10,000,000
registered capital
AR #10,000,0007T
AR

US$20,000,000
registered capital
20,000,000% 7T

RMB3,000,000
registered capital
AR #3,000,0007
AMER

Effective percentage
of issued share capital/
registered capital held

by the Company
APRRBCRT
BE/ZMER
ERE
31122014 3132014
ZE-mF —T-MF
+=8 =A
=t-A =t-AH
% %
100¢ -
100¢ -
100* -
100* -
100¢ -
100¢ -
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

EX:E

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REEMR

Inactive

EEXH

Financial leasing

HERE

Inactive

EEXR
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
APRRBCRT
FRARL/ B4CRT/ BA/EREE
WEARER T2 AR A ERE TEEH
31122014 3132014
“B-mE —F-mF
+ZA =A
=t-A =t-AH
% %
RERE (ER)REFRAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 6) registered capital
hERE (ER)REFRAR hE AK#10,000,0007C 100 100 EEZE
(Hiite) AR
2B (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
registered capital
hE Bl (Hi2) i AKH#2,000,0007 100 100 REER
FERE (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 60* 60*  Property development
registered capital
HERME (Hi2) i AK#2,000,0007 60* 60*  MEER
HER
PERBREER (AR)BERAT The PRC US$500,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
PERBREER (LX) BERAF hE 500,000% T 100 100 EE£K
(K1) &R
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Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
APRRBCRT
FRARL/ B4CRT/ BA/EREE
WEAR AR T2 A R A ERE TEEH
31122014 3132014
“E-QmE —ZT-QmF
+=8 =A
=t-A =t-AH
% %
ERBESFHOXIDAERA The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1) registered capital
PERBESHA R BRAT hE AK#1,000,0007 100 100 REER
(Hizt1) HMEX
PERBESHA R BRAT The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
hERREEHA R BERAT i AR 2,000,000 100 100 EEER
(Hiit1) BalliEv
# These subsidiaries were newly incorporated during the nine ZENERAIREE - FE—MF
months ended 31 December 2014. + = A=+—HIFER M
o
& The subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 March * BN AR E—F—HF=H

=1 —HILFRWRE - FIEHR
it37 e

2014. Details are set out in note 37.

Annual Report 2014 F 3§



For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

Notes:

These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises
established in the PRC.

This subsidiary is domestic enterprises with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by 2% & and
#l5k 8 who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and
50% respectively.

This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by & &% and
f#$% % who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and

50% respectively.

This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by ##/)\% and
H BB who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 66.67% and
33.33% respectively.

This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by #/]N&,
gE 4t and PFRJEE who hold the interest in the subsidiary of
20%, 40% and 40% respectively.

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the exception of Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited,
Brilliant Wise International Limited, Gain Capital International
Limited, SmartMax International Limited, Dream Class Limited,
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited, Estate Summit Limited and
New Tycoon Global Limited which are directly owned by the
Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by the
Company.

Mt

EMBRRIHEZINEBED

°

P X
He

ZINB AR TINFRREKLZ BRE
ARERE - ZMBRARIBARAR]
BRTOHREKRETZENR
PRESE TSR REKES R
BB ZM B R R50%#E R

ZINB AR TINFRREKLZ BRE
ARERE - ZMBRARBARAR]
BREEERRBREFITZENE
PR E  AEELRRB RS
BB ZM B R R50%#E s -

ZINB AR TINFRREKLZ BRE
ARERE - ZMBRARBARAR]
BREERABREITZENE
PRESA  HNERABRS R
BB B R A66.67%533.33%

e

e

ZHBARIRFEKLZER
EENEATE -ZMBRARAAR
RlIEBM/NE AT KRS E SR
AR REERE  BHE-
BEEARRIERS BIFBEZNEA
A]20% * 40% 2 40%HE 2%

FIBERBHANEERTEET

BxChung Tai Printing Holdings
Limited Brilliant Wise
International Limited~Gain Capital
International Limited* SmartMax
International LimitedDream Class
Limited * Galaxy Way Enterprise
Limited * Estate Summit Limited &
New Tycoon Global Limited A2
BEEERIN FTEEMIEB AR
RARNRIMEES-
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of the period/year or at any time during the period/
year.

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

BERERELER (FRAA KBRS
B)EE LY B ARNERRS
REWEBRABZBRAGREE
S FEEABRREHNE LR
2 FZNBEEF2EEMDIK-

GEPNGPS VLS ey
AT T 4 T 14 5K 18038 2
BB

TRETNAREREEANIFZERK
BRI EMBRARFE:

interests
Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests
BB HR FERER
) NGRS TREXHY RERRERREE 2L
31.12.2014 31.3.2013
—B-mE —T-=F
+=8 =R
Sr="[ =t—H
HEREE PRC 40% 40%
hERME e

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

BRFERERZERTER
Lil=PNG]

Loss allocated to

non-controlling interests

Accumulated non-
controlling interests

PEREFEREZZER Rt RRER
31.12.2014 3132013  31.12.2014  31.3.2013
“E-mE —T--% ZE-QmF —T-=F%
+=A =A +=A =A
=t-8 =t+-8 =t-B =+-8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(205,670) (729,913) (39,679) 87,574
= (3,937) (199,886) (199,886)
(205,670) (733,850) (239,565) (112,312)

Summarised financial information for the nine months ended
31 December 2014 and the year ended 31 March 2014 in
respect of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total equity

Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests of
the Company

Expenses

Loss for the period/year
since acquisition

Other comprehensive income for
the period/year since acquisition

Total comprehensive expense for
the period/year since acquisition

Loss for the period/year since
acquisition attributable to
— the owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests of the
Company

Loss for the period/year
since acquisition

For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

FRBEE
mMEBEE
mEEE

SR

B

RRBHEA A
P15t =S
ENNSIE Sl e

<

BRI AR 2 AH &
&5 18

BB AR 2 A5
H 2w A

BB AR 2 RS
PHMAX AR

AT ALRESLBWE
VAR 2 B,/ B 48
—RRBHEEA
—RNRFIFHE RS

BB AR 2 A&
518

1.4.2014 to
31.12.2014
—E-MEF
mA—BZE
—E-—QmEF

+=A=+-—-H

HK$
BT
10,962

45,328,614
(50,173,136)

(4,833,560)

(2,900,136)

(1,933,424)

(4,833,560)

(514,176)

(514,176)

196,043

(318,133)

(308,506)

(205,670)

(514,176)

1.4.2013 to
31.3.2014
—E—=F
WMA—B=
—E—mF
—A=+—H
HK$

BT

14,174

43,700,709
(48,230,310)

(4,515,427)

(2,709,256)

(1,806,171)

(4,515,427)

(1,824,781)

(1,824,781)

(490,495)

(2,315,276)

(1,094,868)

(729,913)

(1,824,781)
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For the nine months ended 31 December 2014

BE_F—MFEF_H="+—HINEA

1.4.2014 to 1.4.2013 to
31.12.2014 31.3.2014
—E-MF —T-=F
A—HBZE MA—B=
—E-mEF —EF-NF
+=A=+—8 =A=+—~H
HKS$ HK
BT BT
Other comprehensive expense for LA AL el B Y
the period/year since acquisition VAR 2 AR HR/F
attributable to Hib2EHAX
— the owners of the Company —ARaHEB A 117,626 (294,297)
— non-controlling interests of the — AR aE R R
Company 78,417 (196,198)
Other comprehensive expense for BURE AR 2 N H &
the period/year since acquisition Ht2mx 196,043 (490,495)
Total comprehensive expense for AT AT e B Yk
the period/year since acquisition VAR 2 8B
attributable to >HEMX 2%
— the owners of the Company —AREHEB A (190,880) (1,389,165)
— non-controlling interests of the — AR aE TR RS
Company (127,253) (926,111)
Total comprehensive expense for BURE AR 2 N H &
the period/year since acquisition 2HEMX 428 (318,133) (2,315,276)
Net cash outflow from operating KEXBR®
activities TR F R (1,184,549) (2,296,067)
Net cash inflow from BEEEHR S
financing activities AR EE 1,740,758 2,376,268
Net cash inflow RERNFER 556,209 80,201
Dividend paid to non-controlling EfREEHE
shareholder of F)5 5 &= FE 12 IR AR B AR B - -
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AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
R-F—pFE+—H=4+—H

Group’s Approximate

effective gross Category of
Location interest floor area Usage lease
rEEZ BHRBEE
b B BRER HE AR A E 5
(sq. m)
(F5%)
No. 1801, 15th floor, 100% 175.66  Commercial Medium-term lease

Block 4, Yard 89,

89 Jianguo Road, Chaoyang

district, Beijing, the PRC

F L R SRS @ A B B 895 100% 175.66 3 HEATR A
895% BT 45 12 15/ 18015%

Lot. No. 5378 IN D.D.51, 100% 4,859 Industrial Medium-term lease
G/F-2/F, 4/F, Chung Tai Printing

Group Building

No. 11 Yip Cheong Street,

On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,

New Territories

AN BELENEGE5R 100% 4,859 T ¥ R HITE A9
FREIREEKRELEL9515%

HEX53785% « Hh T 218 R 4iE

Group's
effective Approximate
Location interest site area  Usage Category of lease
rEEZ
b B ERERZ BONREE AR HAE 5
(sq. m)
(FHK)
Two parcel of lands designated 60% 3,406.67 Commercial and  Medium-term lease
as No. B19001-1*1 and Residential

No. B19001-2*1 of Villagers

Committee of Lian Tang Village,

Dong Cheng Sub-district Office,

Qingcheng District, Qingyuan City

BEMBNRRMENFEEEN 60% 3,406.67 BERIE=E R HAFE A
REZEBESZMiE L (MBRRERE

B19001-1*15% K 5B19001-2*15%)
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Revenue Yz

Profit (loss) before taxation B ATEF (&518)

Taxation BB

Profit (loss) for the year AEERF (HE)

Attributable to: AT AL

Owners of the Company KRR EEARA

Non-controlling interests ~ 3EVERGiE %S

Total assets BEME
Total liabilities AERE
Total equity ERBE

Equity attributable to owners KA AI# A A
of the Company [EitER
Non-controlling interests ~ JEHERR#E LS

Annual Report 2014 F

2010

—Z-%%
HK$'000
FEL

569,016

63,166
(2,953)

60,213

60,213

60,213

2010

“T-%F
HK$'000
TER

896,267
87,562

808,705

808,705

808,705

2011

—E——F
HK$'000
FAR

678,246

54,552
(7,667)

46,885

46,885

46,885

2011

—E——F
HK$'000
TER

956,802
105,926

850,876

850,876

850,876

For the year ended 31 March

HZ=A=t-HLEE
2012 2013
—E-CfF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THT
660,687 643,749
(54,862) 3,463
(1,253) (1,810)
(56,115) 1,653
(55,938) 1,672
(177) (19)
(56,115) 1,653
At 31 March
R=ZB=+-H
2012 2013
—E-CF —Z-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL
883,671 881,998
97,428 87,837
786,243 794,161
786,420 794,357
(177) (196)
786,243 794,161

2014

—E-mE
HK$'000
FER

613,269

(20,531)
(1,219)

(21,750)

(21,016)

(734)

(21,750)

2014

—Z-mE
HK$'000
TR

897,928
125,160

772,768

772,880

(112)

772,768

1.4.2014

to

31.12.2014
—2-pmE
mA-BZE
—B-mE
TEHEr=E
HK$'000
TR

419,513

(79,577)
734

(78,843)

(78,637)

(206)

(78,843)

As at
31.12.2014
R-B-WE
+=A=+-8
HK$'000

THET

940,561
119,165

821,396

821,636

(240)

821,3%



Neway Group Holdings Limited
FESEZERBRLF

Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, N.T., H.K.
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